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Some of the software’s key features include:
• Assessment and Prov-Tax estimate reports
•  Individual taxpayers and Trusts
•  Company tax reviews
•  Fringe benefi t calculations and claims
•  Company car and own car travel claims
•  CGT calculations
•  All the new complex medical claims and tax credits
•  New taxation of local and foreign dividends
•  s6quat limits
•  Taxation of lump sums - as well as a host of other essential features

South Africa’s premier
tax softwareWinTax

Now available from only R342.00 a year!

For more information contact Softbyte Computers cc
T 031 464 2289 | F  086 549 9142 | E contact@softbyte.co.za

www.softbyte.co.za

WinTax, from Softbyte Computers (est. 1983), is undisputedly South 
Africa’s best and most user-friendly tax calculator software program
WinTax has been the software of choice for Old Mutual for the past 16 years and also used and trusted by ABSA, 
Standard Trust as well thousands of Accountants, Tax Practitioners, Bookkeepers and Financial Consultants.

Free updates are available 
when laws change during the 
tax year and we also provide 
tax help and a free software helpline.

WinTax Advert 1/3 page (95x210mm)   1 2013/04/04   8:39 AM

T
echnology is moving in fast 
forward and if we don’t move 
with it we will fall behind 
and get lost in the world 
of computer gadgets and 
applications, laptops, smart 
phones, iPads and more…

The ‘in thing’
The new in thing is the QR Code. What is a 
QR Code? It is a Quick Response Code. It 
looks like a barcode (keyword) on a page, 
that can be scanned with a smart phone to 
receive information. It operates on the same 
basis as when you scan a friend’s Blackberry 
Messenger contact details instead of 
typing in the Blackberry Messenger pin and 
sending a friend request. This is just a much 
quicker way of getting the information. 

Easy to access
With a QR code you can scan information using 
a smart phone. All smart phones can scan 
QR codes: Blackberry, iPhone, Nokia and any 
Android-enabled phone. If you don’t have a 
smart phone then you can use the SMS system 
to locate the unique keyword on the page of the 
magazine, and SMS that keyword to participate. 

How to use the QR Code: 
Step 1: Download the free software – get this 
from your app store on your smart phone. 

Step 2: Point your camera towards the QR 
code and click on the ‘scan’ button. Don’t 
be too close to the code – allow some space 
around it to ensure the best results.

Step 3: Then, click for the link to appear. 
Here is an example of a QR Code 
for the SAIPA website.Try it…

Have fun trying out new technological tricks. 

Till next time...

A WORD FROM SAIPA

OK… SO WHAT IS A QR CODE? 

@SAIPAcomms

www.facebook.com/
SAInstituteProfessionalAccountants

www.linkedin.com/groups/SAIPA-3759392

SAIPA is active on social media platforms and 
we invite members to connect with us and 
become part of the conversation in this space.

Janine Connor, 
Marketing and 
Communications Executive, 
Managing Editor
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and book your room using the promotional code: SAIPA22  . Subject to availability. Only online bookings apply, 
credit card required for payments. Cannot be used in conjunction with any other promotion, discount or corporate 

rate. Valid immediate to 30 September 2013.

Whether it’s at The Courtyard, City Lodge or Town Lodge, we 
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we have 52 conveniently located hotels that will make you feel 
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THE BRICS BANK – WHAT IS IT, FOR NOW?
Andrew Smith, Senior Journalist

T
he quantity of publicity regarding 
the proposed BRICS Bank is so 
immense that it is difficult to 
believe that, apart from agreeing 
its feasibility and viability, little 
more has been done. There is an 
agreement to implement plans 

that will see a five-country-directed development 
bank and a contingent reserve arrangement 
(CRA). There was little more information at the 
time of going to press at the end of April 2013, 
only that the Finance Minister of each country has 
agreed to form a delegation that will formulate 
the main principles for establishing the Bank. 

So what kind of influence might this have on the 
South African economy; will we benefit; and, 
if any benefit, will it lend itself to the sorely 
needed skills development in our country?

Why is it needed?
The idea of a BRICS Development Bank was first 
proposed by Indian Prime Minister Manmohan 
Singh at the 2012 BRICS Summit in India. 

The rationale is that it is needed to mobilise 
resources for infrastructure and sustainable 
development in the BRICS countries and other 
emerging economies/developing countries.

According to the representative countries, 
the International Monetary Fund (IMF) and 
World Bank treat Asian and African economies 
differently from their western counterparts. 
Harsher conditions on loans are imposed, as 
are higher interest rates and stricter reforms 
directives. In fact, the UK Guardian reports 
that ‘developing countries have criticised 
the World Bank and the IMF for attaching 
neoliberal conditions to their loans, which 
include privatisation of public services and 
premature liberalisation of markets.’ 

And, according to the BRICS website, ‘other 
global institutions prefer to have single-
country dealings and fundings. The BRICS 
approach is more toward multi-country 
projects that help in regional integration.’ 

FEATURE

BRICS leaders from left: Brazillian President Dilma Vana Rousseff, Russian President Vladimir Putin, Indian Prime Minister Manmohan 
Singh, Chinese President Xi Jinping and South African President Jacob Zuma. (Photo: Roberto Stuckert Filho/PR)
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The idea behind it
The idea is that the Bank will supplement the 
existing efforts of multilateral and regional 
financial institutions for growth and development.

This is especially important when the fact 
that BRICS countries face development 
challenges because of insufficient long-term 
financing and foreign direct investment.

The next step occurred in June 2012 when 
the BRICS countries’ finance ministers were 
instructed to explore the possibility of 
creating a safety net – the Contingent Reserve 
Arrangement (CRA) – with an initial sum of 
US$100bn, subsequently revised to US$50bn.

‘The establishment of a self-managed contingent 
reserve arrangement would have a positive 
precautionary effect. It will help BRICS countries 
forestall short-term liquidity pressures, provide 
mutual support and strengthen financial stability. 
It will contribute to strengthening the global 
financial safety net and complement existing 
international arrangements,’ says a BRICS 
statement issued post the Durban Summit.

So, we have the idea for a Development 
Bank in place, an agreed to sum for the CRA, 
infrastructure development, and the need 
for revised policy on loans in common. Some 
experts, according to Reuters, feel the bank 
will be in a position to take on more risk 
than western institutions, such as the World 
Bank, making members more self-reliant. 

Curved balls
While there is common ground, it may be 
important to consider Russian President 
Vladimir Putin’s words when he likened BRICS 
to Africa’s Big Five. “They certainly present 
a formidable potential counterweight to the 
advanced West. But individually they are very 
different, so very competitive, that they are 
unlikely, in my view, to run like a herd. Certainly 
they won’t hunt as a pack.” While his comment 
was meant for BRICS as an economic bloc, 
one should not disregard this analogy when 
examining the potential Development Bank, and 
all the hurdles it will face in the near future. 

On the upside, Putin is quoted in bne 
(businessneweurope) saying: “Russia supports 
the establishment of this financial institution.” On 
another level, in the same quote, he says: “We 
are working on the basis that, if established, it 
will operate according to market principles.”

The market principles Putin is referring to 
is, in part, profitability. So, while BRICS 
Bank representatives still need to develop 
infrastructure details, the fact that Russian 
Deputy Finance Minister Sergei Storchak 
said project or infrastructure financing 
should be based on commercial principles 

appears to show a slight differing of 
mindsets between the players.  “This is a 
problem because infrastructure projects 
are, more often than not, unprofitable.”

Influence on our economy
At this stage it cannot be said what, if any, 
effect the BRICS Bank will have on individual 
companies and, specifically, on accountants 
servicing those companies, although each 
professional is responsible to keep abreast 
of developments affecting their clients. 

First National Bank (FNB) says that a BRICS 
Development Bank would serve as an extension 
to the IMF and World Bank, although projects 
and development initiatives will be BRICS-
centric rather than Europe- or US-centric. 
Apart from participating in banking markets 
in seven African countries, the bank has a 
presence in Mumbai, India. “The China and 
India corridor flow of funds is critical in growing 
these African economies. We are definitely 
supportive of our government’s involvement 
in collaboration with the other BRIC countries 
to form a centre for banking expertise and 
investment into these developing countries.”

FNB consulting economist Cees Bruggemans 
is of the opinion that the BRICS arrangement 
firming up could mean another major windfall 
for South Africa in terms of capital funding 
access and foreign direct investment. He points 
out that South Africa’s infrastructure need of 
R1.5-trillion over the next five years is a 
fraction of the combined BRICS R40-trillion, 
and “one can see we could obtain sizeable 
funding this way rather than having to go 
to western markets.” He does, however, 
neutralise the positive sentiment by adding: 
“…the worrisome aspect may be that these 
BRICS initiatives don’t appear, in the first 
instance, to be so much development-linked 
as to be a politically-inspired quest to outflank 
established western influence places such as 
the World Bank, IMF and United Nations.”

“The establishment of a self-
managed contingent reserve 
arrangement would have 
a positive precautionary 
effect. A CRA will contribute 
to  s t re ng t hen ing  t he 
global financial safety net 
and complement existing 
international arrangements.”
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The Banking Association of South Africa is of 
the opinion that the BRICS bloc and its potential 
in Africa provides a platform for South African 
banks to substantially increase their business 
on the rest of the continent. In a statement, the 
Association said Deloitte estimates that Africa 
will need to raise about $93-billion per year for 
the next decade to meet its total infrastructure 
needs – $60-billion is for new infrastructure. 
‘The BRICS countries will be significant 
players in raising investment for this need.’

Investec Bank adds that SA has a low level of 
foreign exchange reserves, a flat household 
savings rate, and weak exports. However, SA 
has stepped up its industrial strategy and 
infrastructure plans, and access to funding 
at favourable rates (via the proposed BRICS 
Bank) will aid this. However, we do need to 
ensure we spend the loans efficiently. 

As Indian and Chinese companies have already 
invested significantly in projects in South 
Africa and Africa, mostly funded by private 
companies involved, the prospect of a BRICS 
Bank gaining traction, according to FNB, would 
increase the level of funding significantly, 
in turn leading to economic growth.

Skills development
In South Africa we are continually on a quest 
for skills development. While at first glance 
it doesn’t appear the formation of a BRICS 
Bank will contribute to uplifting basic skills, 
there certainly seems to be some scope in 
that direction, but at a higher level. FNB, for 
example, is of the opinion that this kind of 
sharing (in reference to the participants and 
their countries) will lend itself to synergies and 
learning opportunities from larger economies.

It is a no-brainer that infrastructural development 
and other projects in South Africa and the 
continent lend themselves to basic skills 
development and employment.  Investec Bank 
summed this up well when it said ‘developing 
stronger relationships with the export intensive 
BRICS members and initiating information 
exchange across the emerging countries should 
positively impact innovation and growth in 
the manufacturing and export industries. SA 
must take care that it accesses these gains 
as a result of strengthening relationships.’

FEATURE

The BRICS bloc and its 
potential in Africa provides 
a platform for South African 
banks to substantially increase 
their business on the rest of 
the continent. 
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Challenges 
The BRICS Bank idea is still in its infancy, 
and the majority of challenges seem 
to deal with immediacy and planning 
– composition of voting rights; bank 
executives and location are only three. 

There are other longer-term challenges such 
as appropriate project identification; loan 
conditionalities; suitable dealings with existing 
international finance houses, and loan currency to 
be used. However, if BRICS members are prepared 
to learn from others and not try reinvent the wheel, 
assistance is only a call away. The IMF Managing 
Director Christine Lagarde, said she views the 
BRICS Bank favourably.” There are other regional 
banks, not just development banks… I think it’s 
good to have clusters, including BRICS countries 
that are not part of one region, to help each other 
out. We are happy to contribute our expertise.” 

FNB says a potential drawback is that the Bank 
will have five partners with varying strength and 
purchasing power. It is, therefore, important that 
South Africa play an assertive role and manage 
the power and strength of the other partners 
as they rally international decision-makers for 
their mutual benefit.  BRICS Bank shareholders 
will need to get their heads around the need 
to make development of these five countries 
a priority. The goal must be the benefit of 
each country, rather than pure profit motive.

Something else on the table is the conditionality of 
loans. “What we know about development banking 
is that the loan itself is the least important aspect. 
It’s the policy related to the loan – the policy 
conditionality [that is important],” said Organisation 
for Economic Co-operation and Development 
(OECD) Secretary General Angel Garría.

On a high point
BRICS countries account for 40% of the 
world’s population, 27% of its GDP and boast 
$4.5-trillion in foreign exchange reserves – 40% 
of what is held globally. The World Bank has 
$205.4-billion capital which is contributed by 
188 member countries. So, while population, 
GDP and reserves do not make a bank, it would 
be foolhardy not to admit that these statistics 
make for a pretty good starting point.

The formation of a BRICS Bank shows that 
the BRICS alliance means business and is 
not a theoretical entity. Succinctly stated 
by FNB, the BRICS Bank will send a strong 
signal out to the rest of the world that there 
is co-operation between the BRICS countries, 
which has been little more than theoretical. 

Head of the Asian Development Bank (ADB), 
Indian Finance Minister P Chidambaram, said 
the BRICS Bank will be a boon to the global 
development community. The BRICS Bank is not 
a competitor for the World Bank or ADB – it is 

necessary in supplying funds on top of those 
provided by financial institutions such as the 
ADB and World Bank. “The Bank is needed 
because funds currently available through existing 
multi-lateral institutions are insufficient.”

“The formation of the [banking] institution 
will add concrete substance to what is 
otherwise a loose bloc of countries,” said 
Simon Freemantle, Standard Bank’s Senior 
Analyst in the African Political Economy Unit.

In summary
We know what it is; what it’s for; what the 
reserve requirements are, and who the members 
are! We don’t know: who will head it; where 
it will be based; what the loan requirements 
will be, or how it will be structured.

We can expect that South Africa will 
benefit through infrastructural and other 
development. This will have a significant 
positive contribution to our country’s 
economy and the way we put our skills to work!

BRICS Bank 

Pros 
 C Establishing a self-managed 

contingent reserve will have a 
positive precautionary effect.

 C Development challenges due to 
insufficient long-term financing 
may soon be in the past.

 C Mutual support between 
BRICS countries will strengthen 
financial stability.

 C The Bank will be able to take 
on more risk than western 
institutions.

 C It may become a centre 
for banking expertise and 
investment in BRICS countries.

 C It may become a windfall for 
South Africa in terms of capital 
funding.

 C Africa benefits – BRICS 
countries will be a significant 
player in raising US$93-billion 
per year for 10 years to meet 
Africa’s infrastructure needs.

Cons
 C No concrete plans in action.
 C Infrastructural projects lack 

profitability
 C Motivation may be that it is 

a politically inspired quest to 
outflank established western 
influences.
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ECONOMIC ANALYSIS

ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND BUSINESS 
ENVIRONMENT IN BRICS
Thomas Hoeppli, Economic Research Analyst, SAIPA

B
RICS is a powerful group of 
the world’s leading emerging 
economies, namely Brazil, 
Russia, India, China and South 
Africa. The five countries 
combined account for roughly 
25% of global GDP and over 

40% of the world population. South Africa 
was the last country to join the group in 
December 2010. From 26 to 27 March 2013, 
South Africa hosted the fifth BRICS Summit 
at the Durban International Convention 
Centre (ICC). The summit strengthened 
South Africa’s international recognition as 
a BRICS member and helped leverage its 
position as a possible gateway into Africa.

Its aims
BRICS endeavours to achieve global peace, 
security, development and co-operation. It 
further strives to make a significant contribution 
to the development of humanity and the 
establishment of a more equitable and fair 
world. In line with these objectives, the 
leaders of the member countries decided at 

the fifth BRICS summit to establish a BRICS 
Development Bank to help finance infrastructure 
programmes and sustainable development in 
the BRICS and other developing countries. The 
trade ministers of the BRICS further pledged 
increased support for the African continent.

Internationally recognised
The growing importance of BRICS is gradually 
being recognised and acknowledged worldwide, 
and has led to a number of predictions. Some 
foresee that BRICS economies will become 
the world’s most important economies by 
2050. Others already see economic growth in 
BRICS as more important for global economic 
health than some of the developments in 
Europe (e.g. in Greece or Cyprus), as the five 
economies together could counterbalance the 
losses suffered from the crisis in Europe.

This article gives a brief comparative overview 
of the economic conditions in BRICS, such 
as GDP growth, inflation, unemployment, as 
well as the business environment, including 
accounting and auditing standards.

Thomas Hoeppli, SAIPA
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GDP
Despite unfavourable global economic 
conditions, GDP growth in BRICS is substantial, 
as the figures for the fourth quarter of 2012 
and the forecasts for 2013 in Figure 1 illustrate. 
Growth in BRICS countries largely exceeds 
growth in other major economies. The Eurozone 
area, for instance, contracted by -0.9% during 
the fourth quarter of 2012, and GDP is expected 
to decrease by -0.5% in 2013. Similarly, BRICS 
economies fare well in comparison with the 
United States, whose 2013 GDP forecasts of 
2.1% lie well below any of BRICS economies.

Figure 1: GDP growth in BRICS (% change on year ago)

Source: The Economist (print edition of 6 April 2013)

Unemployment rates
Major differences between BRICS countries 
are apparent in their unemployment rates – as 
shown in Figure 2. Although Brazil and Russia 
achieved rather modest GDP growth rates in 
the last quarter of 2012 (in a BRICS comparison), 
unemployment rates are just over 5%. China, 
whose economy grew by about 10% every year 
since the beginning of the century, reports 
an official unemployment rate of 4.1%. This 
is in stark contrast with South Africa, whose 
unemployment rate is about 25%. Significant 
economic growth, well above current growth, 
will be required to absorb a large number of 
additional people into the active workforce.

Yet, economic growth alone may not be 
sufficient, as structural unemployment poses 
a challenge. One of the reasons is that the 
South African economy increasingly requires 
staff with certain high-level skills that many 
unemployed do not possess. There are, thus, 
job vacancies that cannot be filled, or only with 
difficulty, while at the same time unemployment 
persists. This is also reflected in the recent 
Grant Thornton International Business Report 
2013 which notes that the availability of a 
skilled workforce remains the key growth 
constraint cited by South Africa’s business 
leaders (47%). In the other BRICS countries a 
lack of skilled workers as a constraint on growth 
was cited less often (BRIC average: 36%).

Figure 2: Unemployment in BRICS (in %)

Source: The Economist (print edition of 6 April 2013)
Brazil and Russia (February 2013); China 
and SA (Q4 2012); India (2012) 

Monetary policies effective
The most recent consumer price figures show 
that inflation in the BRICS ranges from roughly 
3% to 11% as illustrated in Figure 3. Except for 
China (with the lowest inflation among BRICS), 
inflation forecasts predict a slight decrease in 
2013 compared with the current level. These 
figures, and the fact that inflation has been 
relatively stable, or even decreasing, since the 
beginning of the century, indicate that monetary 
policies in BRICS are reasonably effective.

Figure 3: Inflation in BRICS (% 
change on one year ago)

Source: The Economist (print edition of 6 April 2013)

Economic conditions
Stable economic conditions are vital for the 
further advancement of BRICS. It has long 
been recognised that small- and medium-
sized enterprises (SMEs) play a key role 
in many economies both in terms of GDP 
and employment. This also holds true for 
BRICS. In South Africa, the SME sector 
employs an estimated 61% of all people 
employed and contributes 52% - 57% to 
GDP (Ngwenya, 2012). In the other BRIC 
economies, SMEs are estimated to make 
up 60% of the overall employment and 
contribute some 42% to GDP (ACCA, 2010).
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Ease of business
Entrepreneurship and small businesses are 
important for growth and employment; yet, 
starting and successfully running a business is a 
challenging endeavour – in some countries even 
more so than in others. In the 2013 World Bank 
report ‘Doing Business 2013 – Smarter Regulations 
for Small and Medium-Size Enterprises’, South 
Africa obtained the best ranking among the 
BRICS countries in terms of ease of doing 
business (rank 39), with a fair distance to 
China (ranked 91). The World Bank ranked the 
remaining three BRICS countries in the bottom 
half of all the countries considered (Russian 
Federation (112), Brazil (130) and India (132)).

Entrepreneurial activity
Against the backdrop of the ease (or rather the 
difficulties) of doing business, it is not surprising 
that early-stage entrepreneurial activity* is not 
excessively high in these countries. South Africa 
as well as Russia are well below the average of 
comparable economies, and lower than Brazil or 
China in terms of entrepreneurial activity. This 
is an area where SAIPA members can provide 
invaluable assistance to their entrepreneurial and 
SME clients to help them overcome the obstacles 
they encounter and cut through red tape. 

Insufficient international trade
Lamprecht (2011) notes that BRICS countries 
not only share the trend that a relatively high 
percentage of all the firms are SMEs, but also 
that they have a low share of SMEs that export. 
Survey data revealed that South Africa has the 
highest share of exporting SMEs among BRICS 
countries. However, even for South African 
SMEs, there is still ample scope to increase 
international trade – a goal that is in line with 
Government’s objective in the context of its 
BRICS involvement – namely to further maximise 
the potential for growing trade and investment, 
as well as intra-African trade and investment.

Familiarisation essential
If clients extend their business relations with 
the other BRIC countries or intend to invest in 
any of these countries, SAIPA members are well 
advised to familiarise themselves with the local 
standards to be able to advise their clients on 
the tax regimes, accounting system/framework 
and auditing requirements in BRICS countries. 

Table 1 lists some specific reporting issues in 
BRICS countries to provide a first broad overview.

Table 1: Reporting in BRICS

Country Specific local reporting issues

Brazil

Listed companies and large companies are required to have an annual 
audit by law. Whilst other companies may not require an audit by law, 
often the financial institutions or insurance companies require them to be 
performed. No audits are, in principle, required for tax purposes.

Russia

Commercial entities are required to prepare interim financial statements (for three, six 
and nine months) together with annual financial statements. The financial year for a 
Russian entity is the calendar year. Companies must prepare and submit annual financial 
statements to shareholders, statistical authorities and tax authorities. The financial 
statements must be prepared in accordance with statutory legislation that differs from 
IFRS. Separate tax registers must be prepared to support the annual profits tax return.

India
Financial statements must be prepared annually. Accounting standards, issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, are largely based on IAS, but 
differences can apply to the accounting principles under GAAP or IFRS.

China

Under company law and other regulations, companies are required to prepare financial 
statements for each calendar year and to be audited by a Chartered Public Accounting 
(CPA) firm registered in China. Audited financial statements are required for annual 
joint inspections by several Chinese authorities and to support the annual enterprise 
income tax returns. Foreign investment enterprises in China may prepare financial 
statements in accordance with other accounting standards or in other languages for 
consolidation purposes. However, the Chinese authorities will only recognise and accept 
accounts in Chinese which are prepared based under Chinese accounting standards.

South 
Africa

Branches of international companies and South African companies are obliged to 
prepare and file returns including financial statements annually. These may generally be 
prepared in accordance with international accounting standards. The rules regarding 
independent reviews and audits are set out in the Companies Act, 71 of 2008.

Source: Information extracted from various KPMG documents. For more information, seehttp://
www.kpmg.com/IE/en/industry/Expanding-into-BRICS/Expanding-into-Brazil/Pages/default.aspx

* A key indicator used in the 2012 Global Entrepreneurship Monitor that measures the 
percentage of adults (aged 18–64) in an economy who are nascent and new entrepreneurs.

ECONOMIC ANALYSIS
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G
ender Mainstreaming is not 
about adding a ‘woman’s 
component’ or even a 
‘gender equality component’ 
into an existing activity. It 
goes beyond increasing 
women’s participation; it 

means bringing the experience, knowledge, 
and interests of women and men to 
bear on the development agenda.

It may entail identifying the need for changes 
in that agenda. It may require changes in 
goals, strategies, and actions so that both 
women and men can influence, participate 
in, and benefit from development processes. 
The goal of mainstreaming gender equality 
is, thus, the transformation of unequal social 
and institutional structures into equal and 
just structures for both men and women. 

To encourage private sector to buy into achieving 
more meaningful representation of women in 
the mainstream of business, Business Engage, 
a company that is at the forefront of Gender 
Diversity in Southern Africa, has developed 
the Gender Mainstreaming Awards as part of 
the bigger programme F-Factor – creating a 
new gender mindset – enabling corporates 
to experience the business case for gender 

mainstreaming. As Gender Diversity is still 
fairly new worldwide, we understand that many 
companies are just starting on their journey. 
So feel free to apply no matter what level 
of diversity your company is currently at. All 
applications are done online under the Enrolment 
Form tab on www.genderawards.co.za.

The Awards are being run by Edith Venter of 
Edith Unlimited, and the first prestigious event 
will take place on 22 August 2013 for 500 
guests at the City Hall in Johannesburg. The 
naming rights sponsor is PwC, and secondary 
sponsor to date is the South African Institute 
of Professional Accountants (SAIPA).

The Awards will give public recognition for those 
entities that have started putting in strategies 
for gender mainstreaming or that have shown 
good practice and excellence in tackling gender 
mainstreaming.The Awards will target the 
Private Sector, but will also allow for a certain 
number of categories to involve government.

The website www.genderawards.co.za has 
been launched and provides application 
forms to enter the Gender Mainstreaming 
Awards. The details of the individual 
categories and additional information about 
the event can be found on the website.

CREATING A NEW GENDER MINDSET

Gender Mainstreaming Awards - 22 August 2013 - 
City Hall, Johannesburg

ADVERTORIAL
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Meet your new financial controller

Contact the American Express Cards team  
on 011 294 9643/4 for more information.

Visit us at www.americanexpress.co.za.

American Express® is operated under licence in South Africa by Nedbank Ltd Reg No 1951/000009/06, VAT Reg No 4320116074, 135 Rivonia Road, Sandown, Sandton, 2196, South Africa.  Nedbank subscribes to the Code of Banking Practice of 
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• Use consolidated supplier expenditure data to negotiate better rates or discounts.

• Simplify your travel and procurement processes and apply costly resources more effectively.

• Fast, easy and proven implementation.

• Dedicated client service.

 •
 1

6
0

4
 | 

PA
 | 

0
5

1604-Amex-PA-May_13-P.indd   All Pages 2013/04/24   2:15 PM



     PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANT      17

Meet your new financial controller

Contact the American Express Cards team  
on 011 294 9643/4 for more information.

Visit us at www.americanexpress.co.za.

American Express® is operated under licence in South Africa by Nedbank Ltd Reg No 1951/000009/06, VAT Reg No 4320116074, 135 Rivonia Road, Sandown, Sandton, 2196, South Africa.  Nedbank subscribes to the Code of Banking Practice of 
The Banking  Association South Africa and, for unresolved disputes, supports resolution through the Ombudsman for Banking Services.  Nedbank is an authorised financial services provider.  Nedbank is a registered credit provider in terms of the 
National Credit Act (NCR Reg no NCRCP16).

The Business Travel Account (BTA) from American Express® simplifies 
administration and reconciliation of all your business travel expenses:

• Manage your travel policy through a centralised billing solution with our Business Travel Account.

• Use consolidated supplier expenditure data to negotiate better rates or discounts.

• Simplify your travel and procurement processes and apply costly resources more effectively.

• Fast, easy and proven implementation.

• Dedicated client service.

 •
 1

6
0

4
 | 

PA
 | 

0
5

1604-Amex-PA-May_13-P.indd   All Pages 2013/04/24   2:15 PM



18     PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANT

ACCOUNTING TECHNICAL

ANALYSIS AND INTERPRETATION OF THE 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

I
nvestors analyse the information presented 
in the cash flow statement in order 
to make informed and wise economic 
decisions about their investment in the 
entity, namely, whether to buy, hold 
or sell their shares in the entity. More 
investors are placing greater emphasis 

of the statement of cash flow than the other 
components of the financial statements when 
making economic and investment decisions.

An analysis of the statement of cash flow shows 
what the entity’s cash resources were, and 
how the cash resources were spent during the 
reporting period. The information presented 
in the statement of cash flow is considered to 
be the most reliable as it reflects a summary of 
the actual cash transactions and the movement 

in the bank account for the reporting period 
(cash and cash equivalents) and cannot be 
misstated or misrepresented through the 
application of accounting policies and practices.

The diagram below illustrates the classification 
of cash flow ratios which can be used to 
analyse the statement of cash flow:

1. Liquidity analysis
Liquidity analysis is used to measure the ability 
of the entity to meet its short-term obligations 
and is usually measured by the current ratio. 
However, the current ratio measures the entity’s 
ability to provide security for its short-term 
obligations but does not measure its true 
ability to pay its short-term obligations.

Part two of a two-part series of articles by SAIPA Technical and 
Standards Department looking at the Statement of Cash Flow.

Investors have come to realise that profit is not equal to cash; 
money never lies, and cannot be managed or manipulated.

Classification of cash flow ratios

1. Cash flow 
per share

2. Cash dividend 
cover

3. Cash interest 
cover

Investors’ analysis

Return ratio:
1. Cash return 

on assets

Margin ratios:
•	 Cash flow 

margin
•	 Cash gross 

margin

Cash generating capacity

1. Liquidity ratio
2. Cash defensive 

interval
3. Cash burn ratio

Liquidity analysis

1. Cash collection ratio
2. Cash payment ratio

Cash management

1. Cash flow adequacy
2. Free cash flow
3. Cash re-investment

Sustainability & growth

CPD
25mins
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1.1 Cash flow liquidity ratio
The cash flow liquidity measures the short-term 
solvency of the entity and gives an indication 
of the entity’s short-term debt paying capacity. 
This ratio gives an indication of the entity’s 
ability to meet its short-term obligations from 
activities in its ordinary course of business. The 
cash flow liquidity ratio is computed as follows:
 

Cash flow liquidity ratio = 

Operating cash flow
Current liabilities

An alternative to computing the cash liquidity 
ratio is by taking the total cash resources, 
including the cash and marketable securities into 
consideration. The ratio is computed as above.

1.2 Cash defensive interval
The cash defensive interval ratio measures the 
period in days that an entity could maintain 
the current level of operations with its current 
cash resources with considering any changes 
to the revenue. This is a conservative ratio to 
estimate the entity to sustain its day-to-day 
operations from current liquid resources. The 
ratio is used as a credit management tool. The 
cash defensive ratio is computed as follows:

Cash defensive ratio = 

Cash + Marketable securities + Trade receivables
Average daily operating expenses

The higher the ratio, the stronger the liquidity 
position of the entity. This ratio is used to measure 
the ability of the entity to continue its ordinary 
operating activities at the current level of revenue.

1.3 Cash burn ratio
The cash burn ratio measures the period 
after which the entity or a project should 
generate revenue and cash in order to 
become self-sustaining or financially 
viable (funded from its operations).

This ratio is used as a cash management 
technique for start-up entities and during 
the early stages of projects. The cash 
burn ratio is computed as follows:

Cash burn ratio = 

Cash available from initial investors
Average daily operating expenses 

The ratio is used to determine the period the 
entity has until it must be functional, i.e. generating 
revenue and cash to sustain its operating activities.

2. Analysing the cash 
generating capacity
The potential of an entity, its sustainability 
and liquidity of an entity can be measured by 
the analysing of its cash generating capacity, 

i.e. the capacity of the entity to generate 
cash from its ordinary operating activities.

2.1 Cash gross margin
The cash gross margin measures the cash 
generating capacity of the entity from its 
primary source, i.e. its ordinary business 
operations. The ratio gives an indication of the 
entity’s ability to generate cash from its core 
business to funds its operating obligations. 
The cash gross ratio is computed as follows:

Cash gross margin = 

Cash received from customers 
– cash paid to suppliers

Cash received from customers

The higher the ratio, the greater the cash generating 
capacity is of the entity. The ratio provides an 
indication of the entity’s ability to generate surplus 
cash for the payment of returns to investors and 
re-investment in the business. The cash gross 
margin can be compared to the gross profit 
margin. The difference between the ratios reflects 
the entity’s ability to convert revenue into cash.

2.2 Cash flow margin
The operating cash flow margin measures the 
cash flow margin in relation to the revenue 
generated for the period, and provides an 
indication of the entity’s ability to convert 
revenue into cash. Like the net profit margin, it 
measures the cash return from operations and 
is used to measure the profitability of the entity. 
The cash flow margin is computed as follows:

Cash flow margin = 

Cash flow from operating activities
Revenue

The higher the cash flow margin, the greater 
the cash generating capacity of the entity. 
The cash flow margin can also be compared 
to the net profit margin, and is considered to 
be a better ratio as it gives an indication of 
the cash required to meets its obligation to its 
investors (payment of interest and dividends) 
and re-invest in the business operations. 
If the cash flow ratio is higher than the net 
profit margin the entity is considered highly 
liquid and is considered to be in a position to 
sustain its operations from internal sources.

2.3 Cash return on assets
The cash return on assets ratio measures the 
cash generating capacity of the investment 
decisions of management and the utilisation of 
the assets to generate cash. The cash return 
on assets ratio is computed as follows:

Cash return on asset = 

Cash flows from operating activities
Total Assets
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The higher the ratio, the higher management’s 
efficiency is in the effective utilisation of assets 
to generating cash. The cash return on assets 
can be compared to the return on assets based 
on the profits realised for the period. The risk 
of using this ratio as a performance indicator 
is that it does not take into consideration the 
cost of utilising the assets (depreciation).

2.4 Working capital cover
The working capital-cover ratio measures the 
ability of the entity to meet its working capital 
requirements under current levels of revenue. 
This ratio measures the operating risk of 
the entity and is usually used in conjunction 
with the cash defensive ratio. The working 
capital cover ratio is computed as follows:

Working capital cover ratio = 

Cash flows from operations
Working capital requirements

The higher the ratio, the lower the operating 
risk of the entity. This ratio gives an indication 
of the liquidity flexibility of the entity, i.e. 
the ability of the entity to meet changes 
in its operating obligations resulting from 
changes in the levels of business activities.

2.5 Operating cash versus net profit
The operating cash flow versus net profit 
ratio measures the operating cash differential 
in relation to the net profit of the entity. It 
measures the ability of the entity to meet its 
return obligations to investors utilising cash 
generated from operation. The operating cash 
versus net profit ratio is computed as follows:

Operating cash versus net profit ratio = 

Cash flows from operations
Profit before interest and tax

If the operating cash flow exceeds the 
total net income, the entity is considered 
to be stable with the ability to manage its 
resources to sustain its operations. However, 
if the operating cash flow does not exceed 
the profit for the period, an investment in 
the entity may turn out to be a dud.

3. Investors’ analysis
Investors use the statement of cash flow to 
assess the risk of the investment in the entity. 
In particular, the entity’s ability to meet its 
obligations to investors with respect to the 
payment of returns and repayment of capital.

3.1 Cash interest cover
The cash interest cash ratio measures the 
ability of the entity to meet its interest 
obligations from operating cash and measures 
the financial risk the entity is exposed to. The 
cash interest cover is computed as follows:

Cash interest cover = 

Cash flows from operations
Interest paid

A higher ratio indicates a low financial risk – 
the entity generates sufficient cash from its 
core business to meet its interest payment 
obligations. The cash interest cover ratio 
can be compared to the interest cover ratio. 
Any difference between the ratios indicates 
the real financial risk of the entity.

3.2 Cash dividend cover
The cash dividend cover ratio measures the 
risk that equity holders are exposed to in 
terms of the entity’s ability to pay dividends 
from its operations. The cash dividend 
cover ratio is computed as follows:

Cash dividend cover = 

Cash flows from operating activities
Dividends paid

The higher the ratio, the better the entity’s 
capacity is to pay dividends to its equity 
investors. The cash dividend ratio can be 
compared to the dividend cover ratio based 
on profit. Any difference in the ratio measures 
the cash security provided to investors in 
terms of the distribution of cash dividends.

3.3 Cash flow per share
The cash flow per share ratio measures the 
cash return to equity investors. This ratio 
measures the entity’s ability to sustain and/
or grow the business through re-investing cash 
generated from its ordinary operations. This 
ratio is used as a true performance indicator 
by investors as it is free from the discretion of 
management of allocating expenditures and 
accounting policies of the entity. The cash 
flow per share ratio is computed as follows:

Cash flow per share = 

(Cash flows from operating activities 
– Preference dividends)

Weighted number of equity shares in issue

The cash flow per share can be compared 
to the earnings per share. The cash flow per 
share is usually higher than the earnings per 
share. The limitation of this ratio is that it 
does not consider the capital expenditure 
commitments and requirements of the entity.

4. Credit management analysis
Credit management analysis assesses the entity’s 
ability to recover the cash from trade receivable 
in order to meet its obligations to its suppliers. 
Credit management analysis assesses efficiency 
and effectiveness of maintaining the entity’s cash 
generating capacity. The credit management 

ACCOUNTING TECHNICAL
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cash ratios should be considered in conjunction 
with the working capital management ratios 
(operating activity) and operating cash cycle.

4.1 Cash collection ratio
The cash collection ratio measures the ability of 
the entity to convert its revenue into cash, i.e. 
the speed of collection of cash from its trade 
receivables. The ratio should be viewed within 
the parameters of the credit policies of the entity. 
The cash collection ratio is computed as follows:

Cash collection ratio = 

Cash collected from customers x 100%
Revenue [credit sales]

The cash collected from customers is 
computed by deducting the trade receivable 
balance of the previous period from the 
cash received from customers. The higher 
the ratio, the higher the level of efficiency 
is in converting revenue in cash and the 
cash generating capacity of the entity.

4.2 Cash payment ratio
The cash payment ratio measures the rate of cash 
outflows to support the core business of the entity. 
The ratio indicates the level of credit the entity 
receives from its suppliers and can be used as an 
indication of its financial risk. The cash payment 
ratio is computed as follows:

Cash payment ratio = 

Cash paid to suppliers x 100%
(Cost of goods sold – 

Non-cash items)

The higher the ratio, the higher 
the cash outflows to support 
the core business of the entity. 
The ratio should be assessed 
with the cash collection ratio.

5. Cash sustainability 
and growth analysis

The cash sustainability and 
growth analysis is conducted 
to assess whether the entity 
generates sufficient cash from 
its ordinary business activities 
to finance its sustainability 
and growth programmes.

5.1 Free cash flow
Business entities that are growing 
quickly will be investing most of 
their excess funds into expansion, 
so the free cash flow may not 
be high. However, an entity with 
negative free cash flow should be 
considered a risky investment. 

5.2 Cash flow adequacy ratio
The cash flow adequacy ratio measures the 
ability of the entity to generate sufficient cash 
from its ordinary operations to cover capital 
expenditure, investment in working capital 
and cash dividends. The cash flow adequacy 
ratio measures the capacity of the entity to 
meet its long-term debt obligations. The cash 
adequacy ratio is computed as follows:

Cash flow adequacy ratio = 

Cash flows from operating activities
Annual average long-term debt maturity

5.3 Cash flow gearing ratio
The cash flow gearing ratio can also be 
analysed in terms of the funding of investing 
activities from internal sources. The ratio can 
then be used as the internal funding gearing 
rate when it is calculated by dividing the net 
investments for replacement of capital assets 
by the operating cash flow. The higher the 
internal gearing ratio, the more stable the entity 
is in terms of sustaining existing operations.

A sound analysis of the statement of cash flow 
can give an investor a very clear picture of the 
most important aspect of a business: how much 
cash it generates and, particularly, how much 
of that cash stems from core operations.
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T
here is a fine line between 
accrual liabilities, provisions, 
and contingent liabilities.  The 
classification, to a large extent, 
depends on management’s 
judgement based on the 
interpretation and estimations 

of the circumstances prevailing at the reporting 
date about the outcome of the occurrences or 
non-occurrence of future events. The question 
of when one raises an accrued expense versus 
a provision or when is it a contingent liability is 
often confused, particularly in the SME sector.

What is an accrued expense 
and when is it raised?
Accrued expenses are expenses that have 
been incurred but not yet paid for. An accrued 
expense is paid in the period after which it 
has already been recognised in the books of 
account for the previous period. The effect of 
an accrued expense is an increase in expenses, 
thus reducing profits in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income and an increase in 
current liabilities in the Statement of Financial 
Position. The main determining factor is whether 
the expense has already been incurred or not.

What is a provision?
A provision is where an expense is incurred but 
the actual amount is not known or the timing of 
the event is uncertain at the time of recording 
the transaction at the end of the accounting 
period. Often the creation of provisions and 
contingent liabilities are recognised in the 
name of ‘prudent’. The question is whether the 
recognition of such obligations enhances the 
quality and usefulness of the financial statements 
for users and decision-makers, or whether it 
is a means of managing results and financial 
information presented in financial statements.

The common criteria for, and obligation to 
meet, the definition of a liability, provision and 
contingent liability is that it must arise from a 
past event, namely, the obligating event or event 
giving rise to the obligations must have occurred 
prior to the reporting date. The criteria which 
separates the obligations between a liability, 
provision and contingent liability is the degree 
of certainty/uncertainty about the timing of 
its occurrence or non-occurrence of the event 
and/or the amount of the obligation, namely, 
the probable fulfilment of the obligation.

A provision is recognised only when a past 
event created a present obligation, an outflow 
of resources is probable, and the amount of the 
obligation can be estimated reliably, but there is 
uncertainty about the timing of the occurrence 
and amount. A contingent liability, on the other 
hand, arises when there is a possible obligation 
that arises from past events whose existence 
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or 
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events, not wholly within the control of the entity.

In general, obligations which meet the 
recognition criteria of a liability are usually 
classified as provisions, while those which 
do not are usually classified as contingent 
liabilities. The classification and recognition 
of obligations is important because provisions 
are recognised in the entity’s Statement of 
Financial Position. This directly impacts on the 
liquidity and solvency of the entity, whereas 
contingent liabilities are only disclosed in the 
notes to the financial statements which are often 
ignored when analysing financial statements.

An entity shall only recognise a provision 
in the financial statements if:
C The entity has an obligation at the 

reporting date as a result of a past event. 
The present obligation exists;

C It is probable (more than likely) that the 
entity will require to transfer economic 
benefits in settlement.

C The amount of the obligation can be 
estimated reliably.

Present obligation
A present obligation only results from a 
contractual/legal obligation, which is enforced 
by law, or from a constructive obligation which 
arises because of the past actions of the entity, 
which creates a valid expectation in other parties 
that the entity will discharge the obligation.

A constructive obligation is an obligation 
that derives from an entity’s actions when:
C By an established pattern of past practice, 

published policies or a sufficiently specific 
current statement, the entity has indicated 
to other parties that it will accept particular 
responsibilities.

C As a result, the entity has created a valid 
expectation on the part of those other parties 
that it will discharge those responsibilities.

ACCRUED EXPENSES, PROVISIONS AND 
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES EXPLAINED
Faith Ngwenya, Technical & Standards Executive, SAIPA

CPD
15mins
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An entity can only recognise a provision if 
a present obligation exists at the reporting 
date, namely, the past event giving rise to 
the obligation (obligation event) must have 
occurred prior to the reporting. An entity 
cannot recognise a provision in respect of an 
obligation that arises from future actions of the 
entity, no matter how likely, as these events 
do not give rise to present obligations. It is, 
therefore, inappropriate to recognise a provision 
for future losses because the entity has no 
present obligation to incur those losses, except 
when the entity has an onerous contract.

An entity can only recognise a provision 
if it is probable that the obligation will be 
fulfilled in future periods. An obligation is 
only considered probable if it is more than 
likely to be fulfilled, namely, where there is 
a more than 50% chance of the obligation 
being fulfilled. The probable occurrence of 
the event must be determined based on 
the facts and circumstances available at the 
reporting date and management’s judgement.

Effects of taxation
Provisions recognised in the accounting 
records are generally not allowed as 
deductions for the purposes for tax on 
initial recognition. The amount to be paid 
to settle the obligation for which the 
provision was raised is only recognised as a 
deduction for tax purposes when the actual 
expense is incurred. This implies that the 
provision recognised represents a temporary 
difference giving rise to deferred tax.

For a full guide to IFRS for SMEs please order the 
sought-after textbook authored by Dr Rashid Small for 
SAIPA by sending an e-mail to techadmin@saipa.co.za.

Liability: A liability is defined 
as a present obligation of 
the entity arising from a past 
event, the settlement which is 
expected to result in an outflow 
from the entity of resources 
embodying economic benefits.

Provision: A provision is defined as a 
liability of uncertain timing or amount.

Contingent liability: A contingent 
liability is defined as a possible 
obligation that arises from past 
events and its existence will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future event/s, not wholly 
within the control of the entity.

Contingent asset: A contingent asset 
is defined as a possible asset that 
arises from past events and whose 
existence will be confirmed by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one 
or more uncertain future events, not 
wholly under the control of the entity.

Onerous contract: An onerous 
contract is defined as a contract 
in which the unavoidable costs 
of meeting the obligations 
under the contract exceed the 
economic benefits expected 
to be received under it.
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INDUSTRY NEWS

FALLING FOUL OF FAIS
Georgina Guedes, Freelance writer

T
he roles played by professional 
accountants are vast and varied, 
and their skills may be called 
upon in diverse circumstances 
and for a range of reasons. 
While their functions within 
the corporate environment 

or to their individual clients may be clearly 
defined, there’s a lot of potential for advice 
to be asked – advice that, while freely given 
with the best of intentions, may land the 
professional accountant in proverbial hot water. 

The reason for this is that under the Financial 
Advisory and Intermediary Services (FAIS) Act 
there are certain activities that could very easily 
stray into the area of financial advice – and 
financial advice is tightly regulated by FAIS 
through the Financial Services Board (FSB). 

Falling foul of the Act could have disastrous 
consequences for a professional accountant. 

The purpose of the penalties
“The FSB considers contraventions of the FAIS 
Act in a serious light as can be evidenced 
from the prescribed penalties,” says Tembisa 
Marele, Communications Specialist at the FSB.  
“Any person who acts as a financial services 
provider without the requisite authorisation 
is guilty of an offence and is, on conviction, 
liable to a fine not exceeding R1 million or to 
imprisonment for a period not exceeding ten 
years, or both such fine or such imprisonment.” 

She goes on to say that the FSB can refer 
any person who has contravened to the 
enforcement committee of the imposition of 
an administrative fine. “Allegations of persons 

Professional accountants can unwittingly give financial advice that 
falls just outside of the ambit of their regular business. But such a 
practice can find them on the wrong side of the Financial Advisory 
and Intermediary Services Act. 

CPD
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rendering financial service without being 
registered are thoroughly investigated, and 
if there is sufficient proof of a contravention, 
then the necessary action is taken in the form 
of a referral to the enforcement committee of 
the SAPS for further investigation,” she says. 

The purpose of FAIS is to regulate the financial 
services industry and to regulate the provision of 
advice and the rendering of intermediary services 
to clients. The ultimate aim is to protect clients 
of financial advisors from receiving bad advice 
from unqualified professionals. The penalties 
that Marele outlines speak of the severe nature 
of messing with a client’s money without the 
requisite know-how, and they act as a powerful 
deterrent to those who would fraudulently 
pass themselves off as financial advisors. 

However, the same penalties could be applied 
to a person who unwittingly gives such advice 
without any fraudulent intent. Indeed, a 
professional accountant might be approached 
for advice in matters that are so analogous to 
the services that they are already providing, that 
they may provide the advice without considering 
whether they are venturing into areas where 
only registered financial advisers may tread. 

The grey areas
“The question where financial advice is 
intertwined with the provision of professional 
accountant services can be a grey area,” says 
Faith Ngwenya, Technical Executive at the South 
African Institute of Professional Accountants. 

She gives the example of a professional accountant 
who, while finalising financial statements of a client, 
observes that the current account of the client has 
a significant balance, and warns the client of the 
dangers of leaving the funds in a current account 
as opposed to a return-yielding investment. 

“Does this amount to financial advice?” she 
says. “This advice is factual, based on the 
financial position of the client. However, 
professional accountants need to be cautious 
that they do not advise on a specific investment 
that the client should invest in, as this will 
be crossing to FSB-regulated territory.” 

She lists another grey area as one in which the 
professional accountant tells an individual client 
that he does not have the most tax-effective 
retirement structuring. “Telling the client that they 
are not taking full advantage of the tax deductions 
from retirement savings can be seen as giving 
financial advice. The important fact to bear in 
mind in this regard is that you cannot tell the client 
what retirement schemes to take, nor that they 
need to increase their retirement investments.” 

Much of the confusion around this aspect of 
FAIS can be cleared up by the definition of 
‘advice’ under the act: “Advice is defined as 

any recommendation, guidance or proposal 
of a financial nature furnished to any client in 
respect of the purchase of any financial product, 
the conclusion of any other transaction aimed 
at incurring any right or benefit or liability 
in respect of any financial product and the 
variation, replacement or termination of any 
financial product. Advice does not include 
factual advice given on the procedure for 
entering into a financial product transaction, or 
in the description of the financial product, or 
in answering routine administrative questions, 
or the giving of objective information 
about a particular product or the display 
or distribution of promotional material.” 

Ngwenya points out that the risk of giving 
this kind of advice, whatever the intention 
of the giver, is that the client will act on it. 
“As professional accountants, we are no 
experts in financial markets and investment 
holdings,” she says. “An ill-advised client 
could suffer huge losses due to the advice 
received from a non-expert in the field.” 

A question of skills
It may seem that many of the skills required to 
qualify and work as a professional accountant 
would provide for competence as a financial 
advisor as well. However, after extensive 
engagement between the South African Institute 
of Chartered Accountants (SAICA) and the 
FSB, it was concluded that while there may 
be extensive overlaps, the level of detailed 
knowledge required by the FSB is beyond what 
is covered by an accountant’s qualification, 
and that CAs could not automatically 
qualify as financial service providers.

“Whilst we acknowledge and believe that 
most CAs would be able to deal with the 
criteria and perform these outcomes, many 
of the knowledge and skills criteria are not 
covered in our framework at the level of detail 
required by the FSB,” says Yusuf Dukander, 
project director of financial services in the 
Standards Department at SAICA, in a mailer 
to its members. “Some of the criteria are quite 
basic but we are unable to satisfy the FSB 
on a lot of the detailed knowledge and skills 
criteria and we will therefore not be seeking 
a service provider status with the FSB.”

Dukander points out that various aspects of 
the Act are open to interpretation, and that 
SAICA is involved in the working groups to 
clarify certain areas before FAIS is updated. 

In the interim, and in keeping with the general 
spirit of the Act, Ngwenya says that there’s 
one approach that will keep professional 
accountants on the right side of the law. “The 
best advice is that if you are not an expert in 
investments, and not registered with the FSB, 
steer away from giving financial advice.” 
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IFAC

IFAC’S GLOBAL LEADERSHIP SURVEY 
IDENTIFIES TRENDS AND CONCERNS

T
he results of IFAC’s 2012 Global 
Leadership Survey of the 
Accountancy Profession, released 
in March, reflected global leaders’ 
opinions regarding the most 
significant issues facing the global 
accountancy profession in 2013. 

As in past years, IFAC sent the survey to member 
bodies, associates, affiliates, recognised regional 
organisations, and acknowledged accountancy 
groupings. For the first time this year, it was also 
sent to members of the Forum of Firms to solicit 
opinions from this important stakeholder group. 

Given the global financial and sovereign debt 
crises of the past several years, it is no surprise 
that the difficult global financial climate and 
public sector financial management/sovereign 
debt issues were two of the top issues. Concerns 
related to the European Union (EU) draft 
legislation—which could also have an impact 
outside of Europe—were also top of mind.
 
The reputation and credibility of the profession 
also continues to be a main focus area 
among IFAC stakeholders. Similar to last 
year, respondents said IFAC should work to 
enhance the perception of the accountancy 
profession. In addition to being chosen as one 
of the most significant issues, reputation and 
credibility of the profession was also ranked as 
the top public policy area in which IFAC should 
take a position and speak out on in 2013. 

Global regulatory convergence also remained in 
the spotlight, as survey respondents continued 
to focus on the importance of developing and 
revising international standards, facilitating their 
adoption and implementation, and increasing 
confidence in them. Indeed, contributing to 
the development of high-quality international 
standards was one of the areas in which 
respondents said they receive the greatest 
value from their IFAC membership. Global 
regulatory convergence was cited as one of 
the top public policy areas that IFAC should 
take a position in and speak out on in 2013. 

In addition, the needs of small and medium 
practices/small- and medium-sized entities 
was cited as a high priority area for IFAC, and 
another of the top public policy areas that IFAC 
should take a position in and speak out on in 
2013. This issue has been consistently ranked as 
a key IFAC focus area for the past several years. 

Respondents clearly feel that helping to develop 
strong professional accountancy organizations 
(PAOs) is one of the most important things 
that IFAC does. Similarly, receiving advice 
and guidance regarding developing the 
profession and being part of the global 
voice of the profession were two of the areas 
where respondents said they receive the 
greatest value from their IFAC membership.

The 2012 IFAC Global Leadership Survey of 
the Accountancy Profession results includes 
data from 113 respondents from 72 countries 
and jurisdictions who took the survey from 
October 10, 2012 to December 10, 2012. 

Copyright © April 2013 by the International 
Federation of Accountants (IFAC). All rights 
reserved. Used with permission of IFAC. 

5 most significant issues 
facing the global accountancy 
profession for 2013:  

 C The difficult global financial 
climate 

 C The needs of small- and 
medium-sized practices and 
small- and medium-sized 
entities 

 C Issues related to the European 
Union (EU) draft legislation 

 C Public sector financial 
management and sovereign 
debt issues 

 C The reputation and credibility 
of the profession
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B
uilding the foundations of a 
successful business is similar 
to building the foundations 
of a house. Whether you are 
building a home or a business, 
what you lay down at the 
very beginning will determine 

whether the fruits of your labour will be 
deliciously sweet or decidedly sour.

Because what you put in depends on what 
you get out, in any endeavour, let’s take a 
look at five inputs a founding entrepreneur 
would be well advised to implement right at 
the beginning of the business life cycle.

We’ve worked with literally dozens of early-
stage SMEs over the past decade, and the 
five inputs listed below are the ones that 
most commonly come up when we ask 
founding entrepreneurs, ‘What inputs did 
you implement at the very start of your 
business that were fundamental to the 
successful eventual sale of the business?’

Start from the back
Before we continue, allow me to quickly 
elaborate on what has just been mentioned. 
The goal of any entrepreneur should be to start 
with the end in mind. There is nothing quite 
as important as allowing your business to be 
fuelled by passion. However, at the same time, 
founding entrepreneurs cannot allow emotion 
to get in the way of building an enterprise that 
should eventually be sold as an asset of value.

Let’s take a look at the five building blocks 
fundamental to laying the foundations 
of an eventually solid asset of value.

1Proper systems
As crucial to the early stage business as 

the original founding entrepreneur is, he 
should, from day one, be actively working 
to divorce himself from the intricacies of the 
daily operation of the business. If a business 
is wholly dependent on the skills and talents 
of one person, it will never grow beyond 
that person and will never be able to be sold 
as a self-contained and sustainable asset 
of value. The only way for an entrepreneur 
to divorce himself from the day-to-day 
operation of the business, is to put proper 
systems in place that ensure the business 
can function as a self-sustaining entity.

2Specialist advice
Right from the beginning, the right advice 

will prevent costly mistakes being made. It 
may seem, for example, a luxury to retain the 
services of a consultant whose aim is to grow 
the business. However, any number of old 
adages from, ‘penny wise, pound foolish’, to 
‘it takes money to make money’, will indicate 
the value of doing things properly from the 
word go.The founding entrepreneur cannot, 
and need not, be a specialist in all areas. The 
entrepreneur’s gift is vision, and he should 
recognise that the ability to harness the talents 
of others is what will build a successful business.

3Diligent record keeping
Prospective buyers look at past performance 

as an indicator of future value. This makes the 
ability to produce proper records that indicate 
a traceable corporate history, absolutely 
fundamental to the eventual sale of the business. 
Right from the start, accounting and other back 
office support should be outsourced in favour 
of stashing paperwork in cardboard boxes 
scattered around the office. The entrepreneur 
should be focusing his energies on growing the 
core business and not on trying to sort out an 
administrative mess several years down the line.

4Proactive marketing
Many founding entrepreneurs go into 

business after picking up contacts from many 
years of working for other people. The danger 
here is that they tend to rely forevermore on 
this small core of corporate customers, which 
is one of the best illustrations of putting all 
your eggs in one basket. The entrepreneur 
needs to get out there and proactively market 
his goods and services or run the risk of 
the business folding if an anchor customer 
unexpectedly goes out of business one day.

5Buying the building
While this last input may not be suited to 

all types of businesses, I have never heard 
of an entrepreneur who owns his business 
premises complaining of ruthless landlords 
whose extortionate rent is threatening to render 
the business unprofitable. Where possible, 
entrepreneurs should rather offer to purchase 
their premises, raise a bond, and pay off an 
additional asset. This is infinitely wiser than lining 
the pockets of landlords who are very adept at 
skimming the profits off successful tenants.

Pavlo Phitidis is also a regular commentator on 
entrepreneurship and business development 
on Talk Radio 702 and 567 Cape Talk.

FIVE BUILDING BLOCKS FOR SMMEs
Pavlo Phitidis, CEO, Aurik Business Incubator

Pavlo Phitidis, CEO, Aurik 
Business Incubator

SMMESCPD
10mins
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T
he long-awaited recognition 
of controlling bodies by the 
South African Revenue Services 
has finally been completed. 
SAIPA was recognised as one 
of five controlling bodies. The 
other bodies are SAICA, SAIT, 

IAC, and CSSA. The recognition of controlling 
bodies is a first process in the regulation of 
tax practitioners in line with the requirements 
S240 and S240A of the Tax Administration 
Act 28 of 2011. The Act had already legislated 
IRBA, LSSA and SABAR as well as the Society 
of Advocates SA as recognised bodies.

The second phase in the regulation process 
is the registration of tax practitioners with 
SARS. Registered practitioners that are not 
members of any of the above recognised 
bodies have until 1 July 2013 to find a 
professional home and be registered with a 
recognised controlling body such as SAIPA. 
Members that are currently tax practitioners 
and belong to a recognised controlling body 
are required to verify and update their details 
indicating their recognised controlling body 
through e-filing or at a SARS branch.

Professionalism and protection of the 
member and their clients remains top 
priority to SAIPA. Members who register for 
our tax affiliate membership, and receive a 
professional tax designation with the SAIPA 

CoTE (Centre of Tax Excellence)receive a 
Professional Indemnity cover of R2.5million. 
This is an opportunity for existing SAIPA 
members to register non-SAIPA partners and 
staff that meet our minimum requirements 
as a Professional Tax Technician (SA) or a 
Professional Tax Practitioner (SA) thus ensuring 
that you as a member have better protection 
against claims from clients and third parties.

Existing SAIPA members that want to apply 
for a SAIPA tax designation to add to their 
professional status are reminded that the grace 
period to register for the tax designation without 
writing the tax examination is only available till 
30 September 2013. Thereafter, members will 
also be required to write the tax professional 
examination. This is a voluntary registration and 
does not prevent you from being registered 
as a tax practitioner with SARS if you are 
currently in good standing. It is recommended, 
as there are various benefits that are available 
to members of the Centre of Tax Excellence.

For more information, visit the CoTe website 
http://taxcentre.saipa.co.za or the SARS 
website: www.sars.gov.za/ClientSegments/
Tax-Practitioners/Pages/default.aspx

SAIPA RECOGNISED AS A 
CONTROLLING BODY

@SAIPAcomms

www.facebook.com/
SAInstituteProfessionalAccountants

www.linkedin.com/groups/SAIPA-3759392

SAIPA is active on social media platforms and 
we invite members to connect with us and 
become part of the conversation in this space.

Faith

SAIPA TM

Y O U R  W E A L T H

Faith Ngwenya, 
Technical & Standards 
Executive
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W
ith the draft Business 
Licence Bill raising 
significant public 
attention and the 
constant surfacing 
of questions at the 
SAIPA-CoTE tax 

help desk, relating to the tax implication of 
the cost business licences, it is appropriate 
that this edition of Tax Professional addresses 
questions relating to the deductibility of 
business licence for income tax purposes.

The first question that requires attention, in 
relation to a business licence, is the determination 
of the nature of payments for a business licence. 
The question is whether payment for a business 
licence constitutes payment of a revenue expense 
or capital expense. The recurrence characteristic 
for the payments for business licences lends the 
view that business licences are appropriately 
located in the `revenue expense’ category. The 
court in BP Southern Africa (PTY) (Ltd) v CSARS 
69 SATC 79, 2007 SCA also held the view that 
recurring payments were of a revenue nature.

In addition, members are keen to know 
the following in relation to licence fees:
C Are licence fees deductible against taxable 

income of businesses?
C If the licence fee is paid in advance for, 

example, a five-year period, then would 

the tax outcome be any different from the 
licence fee being paid for just a year only?

Generally, the `recurrence element’ on its own 
is not sufficient to warrant the deductions in 
terms of Section 11 – `General Deductions 
Allowed in the Determination of Taxable 
Income’. It is explicit that the recurring 
expenses of a business are permitted as a 
deduction, provided that they are not of a 
capital nature, incurred for the purpose of 
earning income, in the year of assessment, 
and expended for the purposes of trade.

So what are the tax consequences when a 
business licence to trade is paid in the current 
year of assessment but for a five-year term? 
It is an accounting convention to apportion 
expenditure by the number of years for 
which the licence is available. In a discourse 
on tax, it is argued that if the expenditure 
satisfies the aforementioned conditions, then 
the expenses incurred will be deductible 
against taxable income. But Section 11 of 
the Income Tax Act is silent on the benefit 
requirement that the expenditure provides. 
Benefits of an expense could occur in a current 
year or in future years of tax assessment. 

However, Section 23H (limitation of certain 
deduction) of the Income Tax Act, introduced 
in 2000, is relevant to this discussion. This 

BUSINESS LICENCE DEDUCTIBILITY 
FOR INCOME TAX PURPOSES
Mahomed Kamdar, Tax Advisor, SAIPA

With the draft Business Licence Bill raising significant public 
attention and the constant surfacing of questions at the SAIPA-
CoTE tax help desk, relating to the tax implication of the cost 
business licences, it is appropriate that this edition of Tax 
Professional addresses questions relating to the deductibility of 
business licence for income tax purposes.

INCOME TAX CPD
10mins
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Section of the Act refers to a situation where 
the benefits of expenses are not enjoyed in full 
during the year, and are likely to be enjoyed in 
years beyond the current year of assessment, 
and limits the deduction of expenses where the 
benefits from the expenditure are for a period 
which extends beyond the year of assessment. 
In other words, there is a limitation of deduction 
for prepaid expenses. Generally the deduction 
for a benefit has to be spread over the number 
of months or years that the benefit will be 
enjoyed. The convention of disclosing the 
five-year expenditure over the period that the 
benefit is spread is an accounting one. So if the 
five-year licence cost the business R15 000, then 
the business could debit R3000 in the current-
year income statement and R3000 per annum in 
the following four annual income statements.

In a discourse on income tax, Section 23H 
prohibits the deduction of expenses in respect 
of prepaid expenses. This section of the Income 
Tax Act states, explicitly, that all benefits to 
which the expenditure relates must either:
C Be realised within six months of the next 

tax year of assessment; or
C If the aggregate of all amounts of 

expenditure incurred by the taxpayer does 
not exceed R100 000 (with effect from 1 
March 2012 – previously R80 000), then the 
limitation of deduction relating to expenses 
incurred in the year of assessment would 
not apply.

In other words, expenditure whose benefits 
extend beyond the current assessment-year must 
observe, at least, one of the aforementioned 
thresholds. So, if the five-year licence costs 
the taxpayer (a business) R15 000 and incurred 
no other expenditure whose benefit extended 
beyond the assessment-year (thereby observing 
the R100 000 threshold), then the taxpayer could 
deduct the full cost of business-trading-licence 
expenditure in the year actually incurred – that 
is the R15 000. In this particular example, an 
apportionment of allowable expenditure for 
the different years of assessment, although 
an acceptable accountant practice, is not 
a requirement for both Section 11 (a) and 
Section 23H of the Income Tax. The taxpayer 
is, consequently, permitted to deduct the full 
cost of business against taxable income.

It is crucial to state that Section 23H is applicable 
only when the expense is deductible against 
taxable income under Section 11  of the Income 
Tax Act. If the expense, for example, is incurred 
to earn exempt income, then such expense is 
not tax deductible as per Section 11 and Section 
23H provisions cannot be applied as well. So 
if the five-year licence cost the taxpayer R250 
000, then the taxpayer is not permitted to 
deduct the full cost of business licence against 
taxable income because none of the restrictions 
under Section 23H have been complied with.

 In this particular example, an apportionment of 
allowable expenditure for the different years of 
assessment is required and the taxpayer could 
deduct R50 000 in current-year of assessment 
and R50 000 per annum in the four future 
years of assessment. In this situation, both 
the tax and accounting conventions would 
yield the same results and there would not 
be a deferred tax implication. However, be 
mindful of Section11 (gD) of the Income Tax 
Act which became effective 1 January 2008. 

This section of the Act specifically 
refers to the following sectors:
C Telecommunication services,
C The exploration, production or distribution 

of petroleum, or
C The provision of gambling facilities.

If the services relate to the abovementioned 
sectors and the expenditure – not related to the 
provision of infrastructure - incurred to acquire 
a licence from the government of the Republic 
in the national, provincial or local sphere ,or an 
institution or entity contemplated in Schedule 1 
or Part A or C of Schedule 3 to the Public Finance 
Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999), where 
that expenditure is incurred in terms of the 
licence and the licence is required to carry on 
that trade, which deduction must occur over the 
period of time that the taxpayer has the right to 
the licence. If the right to licence is for more than 
30 years, the deduction is divided over 30 years. 

An example is appropriate in order to clarify the 
tax implication of Section 11 (gD) of the Income 
Tax Act. If the Department of Trade and Industry 
awards a 20-year gambling licence to a local 
entity for R20 million, then the entity is permitted 
to deduct a million rand per year (R20m divided 
by 20 years) against taxable income. However, 
the maximum number of years to reduce the 
total cost of licence fee is limited to 30 years. 
If the Department of Communications awards 
a 40-year licence to a cell phone company for 
R40 million, then the cell phone company is 
permitted to deduct approximately R1.3m (R40m 
divided by 30 years – not 40 years) per year 
against taxable income for the next 30 tax years.

Conclusion
It is safe to say that the payment by businesses 
for the cost of licences for periods extending for 
more than one tax-year, need not be apportioned 
if the six-month limitation, or the R100 000 
restriction, is applicable, as per Section 23H of 
the Income Tax Act. In these circumstances, the 
accounting and tax convention would produce 
different outcomes and, consequently, deferred 
tax would arise as a result of the two conventions 
yielding different outcomes. However, if such 
licences are issued to either the communications, 
mining or gambling sectors, then apportionment 
is legislatively required and the deduction 
is limited to a maximum of thirty years.
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A 
taxpayer who consciously 
makes fictitious declarations 
in order to evade the 
payment of valued-added 
tax to obtain refunds not 
legislatively permissible, 
or assists another taxpayer 

to obtain refunds that are legislatively not 
permissible is guilty of a tax-related offence.
Three momentous VAT case laws are 
instructive in this regard. They are:

C XYZ CC and Commissioners for SARS, VAT 
Case number 889 

C Engelbrecht versus the State, heard on 
 7 March 2011
C General Council of the Bar of South 

Africa v Geach, Pillay v Pretoria Society of 
Advocates, Bezuidenhout v Pretoria (2012) 
ZASCA

XYZ CC and Commissioners for 
SARS, VAT Case number 889 
The taxpayer (Mr A) issued three tax invoices in 
January, March and April 2004 respectively to a 
close corporation, PQR CC (PQR), for the supply 
of seafood products. PQR duly paid the amounts 
invoiced. The taxpayer thereafter submitted a 
nil VAT return for the relevant VAT periods. PQR 
submitted an input tax claim on the invoiced 
amounts from the taxpayer. Subsequently, 
SARS conducted an audit to verify whether the 
suppliers listed in the schedules provided by PQR 
had accounted for the corresponding output 
tax, and found that the taxpayer had submitted 
a nil VAT return for the relevant VAT periods. 

The taxpayer’s failure to account for output tax 
in respect of the supplies allegedly made during 
the January, March and May 2004 VAT periods, 
prompted SARS to raise additional assessments 
on 18 March 2005 in terms of section 31 of the 
Value Added Tax Act 89 of 1991 and levied 
200% additional tax against the taxpayer in 
terms of section 60 of the Act. The taxpayer 
objected to the assessments and the punitive 
levies, but SARS dismissed the objection.

It subsequently emerged that members of PQR 
were Mr B and Mr C. They were related to a 
woman working in the office of the taxpayer’s 
family business. Although the taxpayer is not 
a close friend of the two men, they did meet 

socially from time to time. They had proposed to 
the taxpayer that he establish a close corporation 
with the business of supplying seafood products. 
They promised to order supplies from him. He 
duly incorporated the close corporation and 
registered as a VAT vendor. Thereafter the men 
asked him to issue fictitious invoices to PQR for 
the supply of seafood products. They told him 
that they wanted to raise a loan from D Bank. In 
order to acquire the loan they had to convince 
D Bank that they required the loan for the 
purpose of purchasing stock for their business. 
In truth, they did not require stock, but wanted 
to use the money for some nefarious purpose.

The taxpayer issued fictitious supplies invoices. 
The arrangement was that D Bank would deposit 
the amounts invoiced into his bank account 

VAT CASE STUDIES

VALUE-ADDED TAX: THREE 
LANDMARK VAT CASE LAWS
Mahomed Kamdar, Tax Advisor, SAIPA

CPD
10mins
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and that the appellant would return the money 
immediately to PQR. He issued three invoices 
for R474 194.40, R332 766.00 and R217 436.76 
respectively. The amounts included VAT. 

The bank approved the loan and made three 
electronic payments into the taxpayer’s bank 
account on behalf of PQR. The taxpayer refunded 
PQR by means of three cheques. Mr B and Mr 
C left the country, leaving Mr A in the lurch.

The fact remains that the taxpayer issued tax 
invoices, detailing the nature of supplies allegedly 
made. In terms of section 15(1) of the Act, a 
vendor must account for VAT upon the issuing 
of an invoice unless he or she had been granted 
permission to account on a payment basis. 

The taxpayer failed to account and rendered 
a nil VAT return and received payment of the 
amounts invoiced. In terms of section 31 of 
the Act, SARS is entitled in the circumstances 
to raise additional assessments. Moreover, in 
terms of section 60, it was obligatory for the 
SARS to impose 200% additional tax. Obviously, 
SARS is not concerned with any skulduggery 
between the parties to the transactions giving 
rise to the tax liability. SARS can only act on tax 
returns and documentation submitted to them.

Engelbrecht versus the State, 
heard on 7 March 2011
In this case, although vehicles were supposed 
to be exported to Namibia and thus qualified 
to be zero-rated, they were never exported to 
the purchasers listed in the relevant document 
in Namibia. Instead, the vehicles were delivered 
to local car dealers and were subsequently 
sold locally. It is clear that this scheme was 
intended to defraud SARS of output VAT.

General Council of the Bar of South 
Africa v Geach; Pillay v Pretoria 
Society of Advocates; Bezuidenhout 
v Pretoria (2012) ZASCA
These cases refer to prominent advocates 
who did not register for VAT. Some of the 
advocates did not register for VAT for a 
period of two decades, and consequently did 
not levy an output tax on their professional 
fees. The failure to register for VAT when 
obliged to do so is a criminal offence.

The minority view of the judgements, in 
these cases, sought an order to eliminate 
the VAT defaulting advocates from the roll 
of advocates, thereby demonstrating the 
serious view taken by the professional body. 
The minority view in the court argued that to 
deny the fiscus of its legitimate income is the 
same as defrauding a client or any member 
of the public. The trustworthiness of these 
advocates is consequently questioned.

The minority decision, the decision that 
advocates ought to be removed from the 
roll of advocates for VAT irregularities, was 
not supported in the majority judgement.

Conclusions
These VAT gross misdemeanours provide the 
following:

C The context for undertaking 
comprehensive and time-consuming 
VAT audit of taxpayers. Consequently, 
legitimate VAT refunds are delayed. 
These illegal activities provide 
the legal framework for SARS to 
undertake multi-layered VAT audits.
Practising accountants and tax 
practitioners should always advise 
constant readiness through planning 
and preparation of their clients for 
an audit, just in case. SARS conducts 
random audits from time to time 
– all taxpayers are expected to be 
audited once in every five years – 
some taxpayers have been audited 
three times and consecutively during 
the five-year period. The Income 
Tax Act and VAT Act allow SARS to 
undertake audits.

C The justification for regulating the 
profession of tax practitioners. 
The undesirable and unpopular 
regulation of tax practitioners is 
given a considerable boost by these 
misdemeanours to such an extent that 
professional bodies have little legal 
grounds to contest the regulating of 
the industry of tax professionals.

C The outcome of the above VAT 
cases warns tax practitioners 
that failure to comply with tax 
obligations could result in tax 
practitioners losing their source 
of livelihood by losing their 
professional recognition and, also, 
face additional tax penalties.

A taxpayer who consciously 
makes fictitious declarations 
in order to evade the payment 
of valued-added tax, to obtain 
refunds not legislatively 
permissible or assists another 
taxpayer to obtain refunds 
that are legislatively not 
permissible is guilty of a tax-
related offence.
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PIERCING THE CORPORATE VEIL: 
SECTION 20(9) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT 2008

L
ifting or piercing the 
corporate veil
In Atlas Maritime Co SA v Avalon 
Maritime Ltd, The Coral Rose 
(No 1)[ 1991] 4 All ER 769 (CA) at 
779 Staughton LJ explained the 
distinction between lifting and 

piercing the corporate veil in these terms:
‘To pierce the corporate veil is an expression 
that I would reserve for treating the rights or 
liabilities or activities of a company as the rights 
or liabilities or activities of its shareholders. To 
lift the corporate veil or look behind it, on the 
other hand, should mean to have regard to the 
shareholding in a company (in other words, 
to its controllers) for some legal purpose.’

A new statutory basis for 
piercing the corporate veil
The new Companies Act 71 of 2008 has 
introduced a novel provision in section 
20(9) (which had no counterpart in the old 
Companies Act of 1973) which provides that 
– ‘If, on application by an interested person 
or in any proceedings in which a company is 
involved, a court finds that the incorporation 
of the company, any use of the company, 
or any act by or on behalf of the company, 
constitutes an unconscionable abuse of 
the juristic personality of the company 
as a separate entity, the court may-
C Declare that the company is to be deemed 

not to be a juristic person in respect of any 
right, obligation or liability of the company 
or of a shareholder of the company or, 
in the case of a non-profit company, a 
member of the company, or of another 
person specified in the declaration; and

C Make any further order the court considers 
appropriate to give effect to a declaration 
contemplated in paragraph (a).’

COMPANIES ACT

The circumstances in which a court will lift or pierce the corporate 
veil – which often involves imposing personal liability for the 
company’s debts on one or more of its directors – has been a 
thorny issue in company law since its earliest days.

CPD
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The first judgement on the interpretation of this important 
provision was handed down by the Western Cape High 
Court on 13 February 2013 in Ex parte Gore NO [2013] 
ZAWCHC 9. The judgement of Binns-Ward J will be avidly 
studied by company lawyers countrywide, and is bound 
to ignite intense interest in the corridors of SARS.

Veil-piercing no longer exceptional 
or drastic remedy
The thrust of the judgement is that, while section 20(9) 
is not out of harmony with the piercing of the veil – 
judgements that have previously been handed down by 
our courts, it broadens the basis on which a court may 
disregard corporate personality, and makes this remedy 
one that is generally available whenever the illegitimate 
use of juristic personality adversely affects a third party 
in a way that should not be countenanced. It is, thus, 
no longer an exceptional or drastic remedy. Nor is the 
remedy available in terms of section 20(9), one that is 
available only in the absence of any alternative remedy.

Section 20(9) supplements, rather than substitutes, 
for the common law, and is not available only in the 
absence of an alternative remedy. This judgement will 
make it easier for SARS to argue that, where there has 
been an unconscionable abuse of juristic personality, the 
liability of a company that lacks the financial resources 
to pay its tax should be imposed on other parties – who 
will usually be the directors of the company who were 
responsible for the abusive use of its juristic personality.

However, since the remedy explicitly entails that the 
court will declare that the company is to be deemed not 
to be a juristic person in relation to certain of its rights 
or obligations (such as a tax debt owing to SARS) an 
order in terms of this provision will have the anomalous 
effect of unconditionally and absolutely releasing 
the company from the obligation, and not leaving it 
jointly and severally liable with the errant directors.

Conclusion
Section 20(9) (b) gives the court untrammelled powers 
to make ancillary orders to give effect to the order that 
it makes under sub-section (a). An intriguing possibility 
that will entertain tax consultants is that the company 
itself may seek an order under section 20(9), releasing it 
from its tax obligations, and imposing those obligations 
on errant directors or – perish the thought – on its 
professional tax or financial advisers who led it astray.

Source: Synopsis – Tax Today, March 2013 edition. A monthly journal 
published by PwC South Africa providing informed commentary on 
current developments inthe tax arena, both locally and internationally.
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INCOME TAX

S
weeping changes to the 
treatment of financing where 
thin capitalisation is deemed 
to be present, from 1 January 
2013, have created considerable 
uncertainty. In an era where 
cross-border investment is an 

everyday occurrence, uncertainty is anything 
but welcome. In order to avoid these adverse 
tax consequences, taxpayers will need to 
align their capitalisation structure with that 
which, in the opinion of SARS, constitutes 
an arm’s length debt to equity structure.

In the ordinary course, taxpayers are financed 
by way of equity or debt, or a combination of 
both. The consequential returns arising from 
equity capital and debt capital are treated 
differently for tax purposes. Distributions of 
profits declared and paid for an equity share are 
not tax deductible, broadly speaking. Interest 
payments in respect of debt are deductible, 

provided they are incurred in the production 
of income by a person carrying on a trade.

Equitable balance needed
The fact that there are different tax 
consequences, depending on the composition 
of a taxpayer’s capital structure, means that 
that tax considerations become important in 
deciding the way in which taxpayers are funded. 
Put differently, an equitable balance needs to 
be maintained between debt and equity capital. 
A taxpayer who, in the opinion of the SARS, 
is considered to have too little equity funding 
when compared with its debt funding is said 
to be ‘thinly capitalised’ for tax purposes.

Thin capitalisation is targeted by the anti-
avoidance provisions contained in section 31 
of the Income Tax Act, 1962 (Act), in instances 
where a South African taxpayer is funded, 
either directly or indirectly, by non-resident 
connected persons, and the ratio of debt to 

THIN CAPITALISATION
AN ABYSS OF UNCERTAINTY
Ross Robertson, Tax Consultant, Norton Rose South Africa

Ross Robertson, Norton 
Rose South Africa

Have the theoretical intentions been given a practical meaning?
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equity funding is considered to be excessive 
in comparison with what it would be in an 
arm’s length transaction. The reason for the 
anti-avoidance provision is that excessive 
debt may give rise to excessive interest 
deductions, thereby depleting the South 
African tax base. This danger is particularly 
obvious when one considers that interest 
paid to a non-resident not carrying on 
business in South Africa is exempt from tax.

Understanding is vital
With effect from 1 January 2013 sweeping 
changes were introduced into section 31. These 
brought about significant uncertainty in the 
market, in particular as to how SARS would 
implement and give effect to the changes so 
made. In light of National Treasury’s stated 
objective to attract foreign investment into 
South Africa, it is important that these anti-
avoidance rules are easily understood, 
because foreign investors will want to 
understand their implications and practical 
effects before investing in South Africa.

Before the most recent amendments to section 31, 
taxpayers were given an unlegislated ‘three to 
one safe harbour’. Provided their debt to equity 
ratio was within a 3:1 proportion, SARS would, 
in most instances, not seek to apply the thin 
capitalisation anti-avoidance provisions to them. 
This safe harbour, which was widely understood, 
has been done away with and has been replaced 
with the ‘arm’s length principle’ approach.

‘Arm’s length principle’ ambitious 
The move towards the arm’s length principle 
is seen as an alignment of South Africa’s 
approach to thin capitalisation with that 
adopted internationally, as suggested in the 
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and 
Development guidelines. However, it may be fair 
to say that such a move is rather more ambitious 
than it is practical. Born out of admirable 
and well-placed intentions, the practicalities 
of the amended section 31 may very well 
render it a deterrent to foreign investors.

The section places the onus on taxpayers to self-
assess what should have transpired on an arm’s 
length basis in respect of affected transactions 
when submitting their own tax returns and 
to compare this with the actual result of their 
‘affected transaction’. The strongly subjective 
nature of this required comparison is obvious.

Clarity required
In an attempt to provide clarity on the 
interpretation of section 31, SARS recently 
published a Draft Interpretation Note (DIN) on 
the determination of taxable income of certain 
persons from international transactions. However, 
this welcome attempt at providing clarity on 
the practical implications of section 31 has, it 
would seem, fallen well short of the mark.

While it is acknowledged that SARS has 
the unenviable task of trying to interpret a 
section that has been drafted in a way that 
gives rise to practical anomalies, taxpayers 
require clarity such that they might ensure 
full compliance with the provisions of the 
Act. The DIN states, as an overarching point, 
that any international transaction entered 
into between connected persons will be 
assessed against a transaction that would 
have transpired between independent parties 
seeking to achieve the same commercial 
result. The terms of these two respective 
transactions will then be compared, with the 
resulting inconsistencies giving rise to adverse 
tax adjustments for the taxpayer if it appears 
that the taxpayer has been thinly capitalised.

Two adjustments arise in this instance. The first, 
termed ‘the primary adjustment’, will result 
in the disallowance of a deduction of interest 
in respect of any portion of the debt that is 
determined to have been extended on a ‘non-
arm’s length basis’. The second adjustment 
derives from the primary adjustment, in that the 
amount of the disallowed deduction brought 
about by the primary adjustment is deemed 
to be a loan by the taxpayer that is itself an 
affected transaction. As a result, the taxpayer will 
have to calculate an amount of interest income, 
at an arm’s length rate, on that deemed loan 
and include the income in its taxable income 
calculation. Further, the accrued interest on 
the deemed loan will be capitalised annually 
for the purposes of calculating the deemed 
loan outstanding, until the amount is regarded 
as having been repaid by the taxpayer.

Question unanswered
While the DIN goes on to give various indicators 
of what will constitute an arm’s length debt 
and, more specifically, what will not, all the 
examples provided are significantly theoretical. 
Thus, the question as to how these theoretical 
measures and quantum will be applied in reality 
is left in doubt and unanswered. As noted, 
the interpretation note is still in draft form 
with comments required by 30 June 2013. We 
expect significant submissions in relation to the 
DIN, specifically emphasising the assessment 
mechanism that SARS has proposed, along 
with the inescapable inconsistencies and 
impracticalities that will transpire should 
it seek to implement this approach.

As a closing thought, the amendments to 
section 31 of the Act which, to date, have 
been virtually inaccessible in the absence of 
an interpretation note, are another glaring 
reminder that we should not be seeking to 
legislate our Act through interpretation notes, 
but rather to ensure that the Act itself is drafted 
in a way that is understandable and provides 
certainty to taxpayers and potential investors.
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A 
combination of increasing 
globalisation, technological 
advances (BYOD – Bring 
your own Device, where 
individuals now bring their 
own laptops, iPads, etc. 
to the workplace) and 

the economic environment has already 
begun to shape the future workplace for 
Finance and Accounting professionals.

The workplace of the future is a very 
exciting topic and space to be in! The 
result of the above-mentioned factors is a 
renewed drive to focus on profitability for 
business owners; and purpose from a top 
performer and professional point of view. 
The four fundamental aspects our Finance 
and Accounting professionals are reiterating 
as key to their decision making include:

MOBILITY AND BYOD AS KEY FUTURE 
WORKPLACE STRATEGIES
Natasha Bell, General Manager, Cassel & Company – a division of ADvTECH Resourcing (Pty) Ltd

TECHNOLOGY
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C Increased flexibility;
C Increased personal productivity (or 

purpose);
C Better work/life balance (a large part of this 

is commuting); and finally
C The actual figure in their account at the end 

of the month.

Traditional benefits are increasingly viewed as 
being less important than having a purpose, 
flexibility, a balanced lifestyle and the means 
to enjoy these. Research, in various markets, 
has shown results that anywhere between 46% 
and 67% of executives are concerned about 
losing top performers to other opportunities. 
These opportunities are less likely to be in 
the same area, as an increase in globalisation 
is something tangible with business 
opportunities into Africa being maximised.

Our company sees that top talent coming 
into the market are attracted to companies 
with ambition and purpose. The solution 
to retaining the performers is directly 
linked to the future of the workplace – as 
it is these performers that are guiding the 
direction the workplace will take in the near 
future. Two key areas that seem to be at the 
forefront of the changes that are shaping the 
landscape are mobility options and BYOD.

Mobility options
Mobility options are generally the first thing 
people think of when you mention ‘workplace 
of the future’. This perception of mobility 
encompasses theories that all work can be 
done from anywhere. The panicked fear of 
losing control – of productivity, security of 
information and employees is at constant war 
with the employees’ need for flexibility. However, 
the most important aspect to successfully 
including mobility options is, of course, the 
understanding that there is no ‘one size fits all’ 
approach. Core business imperatives, I believe, 
should be at the centre of decisions made 
regarding the mobility options considered.

In fact, on further scrutiny, the four main 
mobility options could be integrated into one 
company. The key to successful implementation, 
as agreed by many experts, is clarity on 
eligibility for the mobility option and the 
process (including people management) 
associated with the options. PSFK purport 
the merits of creating a ‘feedback culture’ 
at work where realtime feedback systems 
are implemented as part of performance 
measurement and tracking. These systems could 
be in the form of social media platforms, such 
as Foursquare, where engagement amongst 
employees is enhanced through ‘check-ins’.

There are four fundamental mobility options 
that can be flexed and adapted to match the 
culture and core strategy of the company:

C Traditional desk-based work option. The 
mobility is in the form of the devices and 
technology utilised in this space. From 
a financial and accounting perspective, 
it would seem that a process accounting 
environment would be most efficient 
with this option. Debtors, creditors and 
cashbook functions would probably be 
most suited to a more traditional mobility 
option.

C Various satellites or ‘landing’ sites that 
could be utilised by employees. This 
implies not having an actual permanent 
desk physically assigned to individuals 
but, instead, utilising a space when it is 
needed. The real estate and general office 
costs are seen to be positively impacted 
by this mobility option, as more employees 
utilise less space than before and, also, 
fewer consumables.

C The employee relying solely on mobile 
devices and technology is seen more as 
a ‘work from anywhere’ than a ‘work from 
home’ scenario. Work can be successfully 
done at any location – whether it be an 
airport or a ‘landing site’ or at a client/
customer site. The increase in demand for 
project accountants, nationally and into 
Africa, gives this mobility option a current 
platform. This mobility option can also be 
seen through the increasingly ‘hybrid’ type 
role of senior executives whereby the trend 
is for increasingly diversification of the role 
to include aspects of general management 
and business development.

C Working primarily at home, with face-
to-face meetings being the only time 
employees would meet centrally. There 
could be a decrease in these face-to-face 
meetings as technology provides other 
options.

BYOD
As mobility and the concept of connectedness 
has increased, so people are also expected 
to access corporate applications, date and 
services while mobile from various locations 
– including while in transit. Coupled with 
increasing pressure from these professionals to 
utilise their own devices, the BYOD principle is 
part of the future workplace. People are using 
multiple devices to access company data.

Corporate attitudes toward the use of personal 
devices in the workplace have changed 
significantly from being completely banned 
to increased usage. In the future, this will 
further increase as bans on personal device 
usage are difficult to enforce. If companies 
do not embrace this change they could leave 
themselves unprotected when employees 
find a way to use their personal device for 
work tasks. This is definitely shown itself to 
be a multiple department phenomenon.
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Security risk
The biggest concern around BYOD policies is related 
to information security and the risk of people not 
understanding the risks of using their own devices 
to access business information. This risk extends 
to smart phones and mobile applications. Citrix.
com believes a pro-active approach to managing 
device access would limit security risk. The right 
technology support and solution is imperative to 
a successful BYOD principle in an organisation.

Both these aspects of the future workplace demand 
further consideration and, once implemented, 
would mean that definite changes would need to be  
effected. Companies would rely on data and analytics 
more and more to measure employee effectiveness, 
potential risks and outputs. There would be a need 
to create portals for realtime feedback online.

A different type of leader
Leaders will need to work differently; effective leaders 
will be those who can hold together teams that are 
geographically dispersed around the world. This will 
mean high emotional and cultural intelligence will be 
critical. Leaders will need to receive training much 
younger than they currently are – a consideration that 
should be on everyone’s radar now as the world prepares 
for a shift in leadership at a generation level. Research 
by Zender/Folkman showed that the majority of leaders 
receive training at approximately 42 years old – 10 to 
15 years after they have begun supervising people.

One aspect of the future workplace that is crystal 
clear – with the increase of mobility options so will the 
need for good, clear communication increase. Without 
being able to rely on visual cues, body language 
and intuition that we do from a personal encounter 
– communication as an evolving concept will be a 
determining factor of success. The communication within 
a business will need to evolve and develop in order 
to address the balance between engagement levels 
of employees versus the isolation of being mobile.

Traditional to stay
In conclusion, there is a new and evolving workplace 
that can positively impact on the profitability and 
productivity of organisations. This future workplace 
has already begun to impact on our current decisions 
and actions taken. There is still a definite place for 
the traditional office environment, with the added 
benefits of future workplace solutions. Embracing 
those that make good solid business sense will 
positively affect the agility of the organisation for 
the future; a future that, in many areas, including the 
top performers, has already begun to be defined.

Natasha has enjoyed a successful career in recruitment and 
is passionate about the combination of business and talent. 
She holds an Honours degree in Clinical Psychology.
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I
’ve just returned from Israel. While 
I was there, Tel Aviv was voted the 
second most innovative city in the 
world, behind Medellin in Columbia 
and ahead of places like New York, 
London, Singapore and Hong Kong. 

The poll was conducted by the Wall Street 
Journal and Citigroup, in cooperation 
with The Urban Land Institute, and asked 
participants to rate cities against a range 
of attributes including: the promotion of 
technology and research, progress potential, 
infrastructure and educational levels.

Everywhere you go in Tel Aviv you’re surrounded 
by smart-thinking, fast-talking entrepreneurs; 
open-minded people with clever ideas that 
they’re turning into very successful businesses. 
The business climate is very vibrant and pacey. 

Research is very much a feature of the Tel Aviv 
landscape too. Articles in their own media about 
the Wall Street Journal poll claim that over 700 
start-ups and research centers are located within 
the Tel Aviv municipality. I haven’t verified that 
figure but I saw enough of them to believe it. 

Any time you have research going on, you 
have smart people and innovation. And 
when you have technology and research 
together, you have entrepreneurship. 

In September 2012 the Southern African Venture 
Capital & Private Equity Association (SAVCA) 
reported in its bi-annual venture capital survey 
that the key inhibitors to the success of venture 
capital funds in South Africa were a lack of skilled 
entrepreneurs and suitable management for 

venture capital-backed businesses. Interestingly, 
I’ve always thought of South Africa as being 
highly entrepreneurial but clearly starting a 
business is not enough – you need to know how 
to keep it going. In a nutshell, we don’t have 
a pool of VC managers with the experience of 
taking a start-up through to the exit stage for 
investors. I think the reason for this comes down 
to low levels of education, which is one of the 
key ingredients on Tel Aviv’s path to success. 

Here’s the thing: the Tel Aviv municipality 
actively supports entrepreneurs and cultivates 
innovation. At the moment they’re talking about 
creating a start-up visa for foreign entrepreneurs. 
Another sign of their forward-thinking is that they 
encourage and welcome international students, 
not just because they prize education but because 
the more students they have bringing in new ideas, 
the higher the intellectual capital of their city. 

The result of this attitude? The quantity and 
quality of investment pouring into the city 
is creating massive economic growth. 

I could go on but you get the idea: Tel 
Aviv fully deserves its accolade as one of 
the world’s most innovative cities. In South 
Africa, we could certainly adopt more of 
their ideas and cultivate our thinking to 
increase the sort of investment that fosters 
innovation and in turn, entrepreneurism.

ADVERTORIAL

THE SYNCHRONICITY 
OF INNOVATION AND 
ENTREPRENEURISM
Steven Cohen, Managing Director, Sage Pastel

For more information contact us:

011 304 3600 
sales@pastel.co.za
www.pastel.co.za
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PERSPEKTIEF VAN BUITE

OM TE VIER WAT REG IS IN DIE WÊRELD!
Prof David Venter

T
oe ek onlangs ‘n toespraak vir 
‘n groep vooraanstaande Hoof 
Finansiële Beamptes moes 
voorberei, het ek tydens my 
soektog na ‘n gepaste tema 
onverwags op ‘n aanhaling 
afgekom wat my aanvanklike 

denkrigting radikaal verander het. Midde 
die verwoestende gebeure van die Tweede 
Wêreldoorlog waarin haar mense koelbloedig 
uitgewis is, het ‘n tenger meisie haar verset teen 
Hitler se uitwissingsidiologie. Met uitsonderlike 
vasberadenheid het Anne Frank verklaar, “I 
don’t think of all the misery, but of the beauty 
that still remains.” Ek is diep getref deur haar 
kinderlike optimisme; optimisme ten spyte van 
‘n oënskynlik hopelose situasie. Soos ‘n Chinese 
filosoof van weleer het sy deur uiterste gevaar 
gekyk en haar motivering gevind in dit wat 
onaangetas was. Vir etlike dae het ek geworstel 
met hierdie oënskynlike naiewe uitlating, en 
uiteindelik tot die gevolgtrekking geraak dat 
‘n groot waarheid daarin geleë was. Hoe meer 
ek haar woorde herkou het, hoe duideliker het 
dit geword dat ons sedert die aanvang van die 
finansiële en verwante krisisse al hoe dieper 
in ‘n uitsiglose moeras van negativisme begin 
wegsak het. Ons het mekaar tonemend met 
ons doemproefetiese beskouinge besmet.

In die moeilike denkstryd om myself uit die 
verstrengelende web van negativisme te 
ontworstel, het die wyse woorde van Albert 
Camus en Martin Luther King Jr. skielik helder 
voor my kom staan: “Where there is no hope, 
it is incumbent on us to develop it” en “We 
can accept finite disappointment, but never 
lose infinite hope”. Teen die agtergrond 
van Dewitt Jones se filosofie oor sy werk as 
fotograaf vir National Geographic, het ek 
my boodskap vir die groep Hoof Finansiële 
Beamptes gepen. Die reaksie was ongelooflik: 
“Dankie dat jy ons vandag gedwing het 
om op te kyk en krag te put uit die vele 
suksesse wat steeds om ons bestaan”.

Graag deel ek met u die hooftrekke van 
die boodskap wat ek daardie dag op 
grond van die insigte van Dewitt Jones 
probeer bring het, en binnekort weer 
op versoek van ‘n reuse multi-nasionale 
versekeringsgroep in Bangkok sal herhaal.

Glo dit dan sal jy dit sien
Alhoewel ons die wêreld met vertroue en 
optimisme betree, word hierdie vertroue en 

optimisme spoedig geërodeer deur ons ouers 
en andere se herhaaldelik beklemtoning van 
die teleurstellings wat op ons in die lewe wag. 
Met groot nadruk leer hulle ons om niks te 
glo voor ons dit nie sien nie. Die ongelukkige 
gevolg is ‘n denkingesteldheid wat deur 
vrees, tekort en mededinging (‘n hond-eet-
hond wêreld) gekenmerk word, en uiteindelik 
‘n selfvervullende voorspelling word.

Indien ons egter vanuit ‘n teenoorgestelde 
denkingesteldheid na die wêreld kyk, naamlik: 
“as ek dit glo sal ek dit sien”, stel dit ons in staat 
om, hoe desperaat ‘n situasie ookal mag wees, 
die positiewe moontlikhede en werkilikhede 
raak te sien wat kort duskant ‘n krisis skuil. Ons 
verwerf dan die insig dat die hede, hoe desperaat 
dit ookal mag wees, slegs tydelik is, en dat ons 
sukses en die van andere ons verantwoordelikheid 
is. In plaas van meesleurende doemprofete te 
wees, word ons bakens van hoop wat andere 
tot ‘n positiewe ingesteldheid aanspoor.

Erken oorvloedigheid
Kyk ons na die natuur, is die boodskap wat dit 
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uitstraal, klimaatsverandering ten spyt, een 
van oorvloedige skoonheid; ‘n feesmaal van 
moontlikhede. Alhoewel ‘n mistige vroegoggend 
woudtoneel reeds gefotografeer is, waarsku die 
woud nie fotograwe wat daarna opdaag dat dié 
foto reeds geneem is nie. Inteendeel, die woud 
nooi hulle uit om die onbeperkte moonlikhede 
wat steeds in die woudtoneel skuil, te ontsluit. 

Wanneer ons die oorvloed misken waaroor ons 
ten spyte van opeenvolgende krisisse steeds 
beskik, is dit al te maklik om verskonings voor 
te hou vir dit waarin ons nie slaag nie. Ons 
kan tog immers nie aanspreeklik wees vir die 
feit dat andere ons voorgespring het nie.

‘n Klemverskuiwing vanaf “wat ek vandag 
sal neem” na “wat ek vandag sal ontvang”, 
bring mee dat ons met ontvanklike nuwe 
oë na die wêreld om ons bakou. 

Soek na moontlikhede
Uitsigloosheid is waarskynlik een van die grootste 
struikelblokke van ons tyd. Midde ‘n tsunami 
van negativisme, is dit byna te wagte dat ons 
ons hande in die lug sal gooi en luidkeels ons 
onvermoë om ‘n positiewe impak te maak, sal 
aankondig. Al die bestaande antwoorde is tog 
immers uitgeput. Indien ons egter die moed 
het om verder as bestaande antwoorde te dink, 
kom ons spoedig tot die besef dat die lewe, met 
weinige uitsondering, veelvuldige antwoorde 
vir ‘n probleem bied. Hierdie insig verskaf die 
sleutel tot ‘n visie van moontlikhede; ‘n lewe 
waarin ons herhaaldelik die volgende korrekte 
antwoord kan vind. Ons toekomsbeskouing is 
dan nie slegs helder nie, maar ook vervul met 
dankbaarheid wat so sterk is dat dit nie deur 
die ergste orkaan ontwortel kan word nie.

In 1959 het John F Kennedy hierdie wyse 
woorde geuiter: “In a crisis, be aware of the 
danger, but recognise the opportunity”.

Ontsluit die energie vry wat nodig is 
om verby dit te beweeg wat verkeerd is
Wanneer ons midde ‘n krisis die moed het om dit 
wat reg en goed is te vier, stel dit die energie vry 
wat nodig is om dit wat vekeerd is, reg te stel. 
Alhoewel so ‘n ingesteldheid paradoksaal klink, 
is dit ‘n onweerlegbare feit dat ons, wanneer ons 
op die positiewe te fokus, die nodige energie 
en insig verwerf om oplossings te genereer en 
struikelblokke te oorkom. Hierbenewens bied 
dit ons ook ‘n welkome geleentheid om te 
ontkom aan die energiedreinerende ervaring 
wat met negativisme gepaard gaan, en as 
bakens van inspirasie vir andere te dien.

Ry die golf van verandering
Die opeenvolgende veranderingsgolwe wat 
die wêreld ervaar, kan vanuit ‘n bedreigings- 
of geleentheidsperspektief beskou word. 
Positief beskou, skuil daar ‘n bedekte seën in 
hierdie veranderingsgolwe, daar hierdie golwe 

terselfdetyd moontlikheidsgolwe is. Hierin lê 
die rede waarom innovasie en skeppendheid 
dikwels in tye van verandering gedy.

Vir die meerderheid van ons veroorsaak 
verandering ongemak en ontketen derhalwe 
weerstand, daar dit die status quo bedreig 
en ons bestaande lewensorde bevraagteken. 
Daar is egter ook die positiewe teenkant. Die 
moontlikhede wat dit vir hernuwing inhou, 
kan opwindend wees. Dit dwing ons om die 
lewe vanuit nuwe perspektiewe te beskou; 
perspektiewe wat vars energie ontketen.

Deur op die moontlikheidskurwe te ry wat 
met verandering gepaardgaan, ontdek ons 
meesleurende moontlikhede; moontlikhede 
wat opwinded en inspirerend is. Uiteraard is 
dit ‘n onvoorspelbare rit wat deurentyd van 
ons verg om te leer hoe om hierdie golf te 
ry en die energie ter verwesentliking van ons 
doelstellings aan te wend. Ons moet leer hoe 
om hierdie onsekerheid op so ‘n wyse te hanteer 
dat ons steeds met vertroue kan optree.

Neem jouself na die grens
In ons lewe is daar ‘n grens tussen sukses en ‘n 
betekenisvol bydrae. Dit bring ons te staan voor die 
groot vraag of ons onsself, ons waardes en ons visie 
sodanig vertrou dat ons die energie, toewyding 
en bereidheid het om hierdie grens te toets? 

Ons vrees vir moontlike mislukking is dikwels die 
rede waarom ons huiwerig om ons doelstellings 
met 110 persent toewyding na te jaag. 

Die sleutel tot sukses lê egter daarin dat ons 
onsself sodanig vertrou dat ons bereid is om 
sonder vrees en huiwering daarna te streef 
om die beste vir die wêreld te wees. Slegs 
wanneer ons bereid is om ons grense te 
toets, kan ons leer om saam met die arende 
te sweef en nuwe perspektiewe te verwerf.

Wees die beste vir die wêreld
Daar is ‘n subtiele verskil tussen die strewe om 
die beste in die wêreld te wees, en die beste vir 
die wêreld te wees. Wanneer ons daarop ingestel 
is om die beste vir die wêreld te wees, het dit 
‘n diensleweringsingesteldheid tot gevolg. Ons 
lewensperspektief verbreed dan sodanig dat 
ons nie slegs op onsself ingestel is nie, maar 
ook poog om ons talente en energie so aan te 
wend dat ons bydra tot ‘n beter wêreld vir almal.

Ten slotte, glo ek dat dit gepas is om Nelson 
Mandela die laaste wysheid in hierdie verband 
te laat spreek: “I am fundamentally an optimist. 
Whether that comes from nature or nurture, I 
cannot say. Part of being optimistic is keeping 
one’s head pointed toward the sun, one’s feet 
moving forward. There were many dark moments 
when my faith in humanity was sorely tested, 
but I would not and could not give myself up 
to despair. That way lays defeat and death.”
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NEWS & VIEWS

As announced in previous editions, the 
University Witwatersrand was accredited by 
SAIPA for its BCom Accounting qualification. 
Following this first accreditation, the following 
universities have been accredited by SAIPA:

 C University of Pretoria
 C University of the Western Cape
 C North-West University 
 C University of Fort Hare
 C Nelson Mandela Metropolitan University

What does this accreditation mean?
Although SAIPA has started accrediting 
universities, we are not at a stage where we 
will restrict access from those universities 
which are not accredited by us. This may, 
however, change once we are further on in the 
accreditation process. During the transition 
phase of accreditation, any BCom or BCompt 
candidate or graduate with the following subjects 
qualifies to register as a Trainee Accountant:

 C Financial Accounting 3
 C Taxation 1
 C Auditing 1/ Internal Auditing 2/ Internal 

Control & Code of Ethics
 C Corporate Law 1/ Commercial Law 2
 C Management Accounting

SAIPA has developed a simple tool for learners 
where they will be able to monitor their progress 
from year to year. This is done using available 
online tests.. Learners in years two and three of 
their learnerships will receive hyperlinks to these 
tests, and are asked to complete these as a trial 
towards a possible online assessment method to 
be developed in the near future. In order to identify 
areas of weakness learners need to focus on, tests 
are structured as per the chapters of the logbook.

SAIPA is developing an electronic logbook 
which, when complete, will allow for the 
monitoring of learner progress. This would 
allow the learners’ Overall Evaluators and 
SAIPA to check their progress to ensure learner 
challenges are identified early in the process. 
ATCs that have perhaps not been monitoring 
their learners effectively can be approached 
with a view of supporting and developing 
them into more effective and efficient ATCs.

For those companies within the FASSET sector 
that claim their mandatory and learnership 
cash grants, please take note that there will be 
changes to the grant structure following some 
announcements by the Department of Higher 
Education. Kindly note that the onus is on the 
ATC to read all correspondence from FASSET, as 
SAIPA has no control over grant structures, SETA 
application deadlines and qualifying criterion.

SAIPA welcomes Gauteng Provincial 
Treasury as an ATC. The treasury has taken 
on 10 learners for the SAIPA learnership. 
We look forward to a long and fruitful 
relationship with this most dynamic team.

SAIPA would like to congratulate Rorisa Training 
on becoming SAIPA’s very first accredited 
training provider. SAIPA looks forward to many 
SAIPA trainees benefiting from Rorisa’s unique 
and practical course offerings, so that learners 
can ensure they are competent in all those 
areas of the logbook they may find difficult to 
gain experience with. For more on what Rorisa 
has to offer, kindly visit www.rorisa.co.za.

For those who missed the e-mail the 
details regarding the new training 
provider accreditation process are: 

 C How does this affect me as a member 
of SAIPA?
The accreditation process is automatic for 
all CPD presenters of SAIPA programmes. 
That is, if you are attending a SAIPA 
CPD event you can be assured that 
the facilitators used are accredited by 
SAIPA. CPD events attended through 
other professional bodies or training 
providers will be recognised in terms of 
your CPD hours even though the provider 
is not an Accredited Training Provider.

 C How does this affect me as a SAIPA 
Trainee Accountant?
When attending training which is 
necessary for the completion of your 

UNIVERSITY ACCREDITATIONS

ELECTRONIC SIMULATION TOOL

ELECTRONIC LOGBOOK

FASSET GRANT CHANGES

NEW ATC

‘TRAINING’ NOW 
ACCREDITED TRAINER
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SAIPA learnership (that is, for evidence 
towards sign-off of the line items in 
your logbook) you must ensure that the 
training provider sourced is accredited 
by SAIPA. The easiest way to do so is to 
source your training providers from the 
SAIPA website. Should you wish to use 
these providers, you may insert a copy 
of the certificate or proof of attendance 
as your evidence in your portfolio.

If the training provider you wish to use 
is not accredited you may then suggest 
that they go through the accreditation 
process before you attend any training 
provided by them. Please note that while 
undergoing a monitoring visit, should 
your monitoring officer find evidence of 
training from another provider which is 
not SAIPA accredited, then the evidence 
will be thoroughly reviewed before sign-
off of that line item will be verified (that 
is, just a certificate of attendance for 
that course would not be sufficient as 
evidence of your competence – some 
work completed by yourself during 
the training programme would be 
required as evidence of competence).

Please also remember that SAIPA samples 
a percentage of learner portfolios for 
moderation. Should your portfolio be 
sampled and you have used a training 
provider not accredited by SAIPA, and 
should the resulting evidence of that 
training programme not provide sufficient 
evidence of learner competence, your 
results can possibly be overturned, 
and you may have to find other means 
of demonstrating learner competence 
in that area of the logbook.

 C How does this affect me as an Overall 
Evaluator of my Approved Training 
Centre?
Approved Training Centres will very often 
fund external training for those areas of 
the logbook needing extra attention. 
You must ensure all external training 
provided for the purposes of building 
up the Trainee’s portfolio of evidence 
is sourced from the SAIPA-Accredited 
Training Providers list which can be found 
on the SAIPA website. Please note that 
the SAIPA monitoring officers will check 
your trainee’s portfolio of evidence for 
any such training, and will check that 
such training is accredited by SAIPA. 
As the trainee’s evidence facilitator 
you are expected to ensure that other 
evidence is provided in the portfolio 
should such training not be accredited 
(i.e. evidence of work completed in 

the training programme, which would 
demonstrate the competence of the 
learner in that aspect of the logbook.)

Kindly Note!
Should your learners be undergoing training 
outside of the scope of the logbook (for 
example, for soft skills such as effective 
communication skills, negotiation skills, 
etc.), such providers need not be accredited 
by SAIPA. Accreditation is purely for 
purposes of building the learner portfolio 
aligned to the SAIPA logbook line items.

Effective implementation
Please note that because this policy has only 
been introduced since January 2013, SAIPA 
will allow a grace period of one year in order 
to ensure all alternate training is provided by 
accredited training providers (this allows for 
SAIPA to sufficiently build up such a database 
of training providers too). Therefore, should you 
have already used or committed to using other 
training providers in 2013, this is acceptable. 
However, any training signed off in the learner’s 
logbook from January 2014 will have to be from 
an accredited training provider, if not backed 
up by other evidence of learner competence.

We back our learners
SAIPA has the best interest of our learners 
and our members at heart, and trusts that 
this process will ensure that the quality 
of all training and development is to the 
highest standard. In fact, SAIPA ensures 
that our members and future members are 
not taken advantage of and misled by some 
potentially unscrupulous training providers.
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T
his almost pocket-sized book 
gives legitimacy to the adage 
that ‘dynamite comes in 
small packages’. The lessons 
learnt from reading the book 
are wide-ranging and have 
consequences of long duration.

Managing organisations is essentially about 
managing human beings. Every activity in an 
organisation involves people, and people thrive 
on strong relationships. This book applies 
relational thinking in order to explain many 
of the challenges that organisations face. 
Organisations are a network of relationships; 
if these relationships do not work, the 
performance of an organisation declines. 
Between major organisations and the end-
user of its services and goods lies a network 
of relationships that impacts on its success. 
The key to success for any organisation is to 
build relationships with end-users, suppliers, 
employees and stakeholders. Whilst it’s easy 
to copy tangible products of a competitor, 
exceptional relationships are difficult for 
competitors to duplicate quickly. It is the quality 
of the relationship that holds organisations 
together. To find out how successfully an 
organisation is able to market a product, is 
essentially to enquire about what relationships 
have been forged between executives, sales 
representatives and end-users of the company’s 
services. To investigate the risk posed by 
toxic emission is to question the relationship 
between company executives and members of 
the public who live near the production plant.

So, while no organisations can survive 
without policies, procedures and systems, 
it is relationships that bind individuals and 
teams together. From an individual manager 
perspective, it is relationships in the office that 
make the work of an office manager pleasant 
or unpleasant. Overbearing bosses, office 
politics, bullying and unhealthy competitiveness 
between individuals are evidence of 
dysfunctional relationships. Individual employee 
performance in the workplace rests on relational 
foundations - working amid supportive and 

positive relationships raises staff sense of 
self-security and enhances staff performance. 
Although the rent must be paid, money is 
not a substitute for relational wellbeing. 

It is crucial to bear in mind that strong 
relationships in organisations do not 
automatically exist because an organisational 
line-managerial structure exists. The structure 
in itself does not provide the trust and mutual 
understanding that is required to build successful 
organisations. It is not the `paper’ relationships 
but the relationships in practice that make 
organisations develop successfully. Although 
e-mail, BBM, SMS and video conferencing are 
modern-day favourites, it is direct, face-to-face 
communication that is the weapon for effective 
relationships. Direct communication provides 
fewer opportunities for misunderstanding 
between managers and subordinates.

This book is not silent on relational managers 
during workplace conflict. At some point in 
conflict situations, one has to let go of the past, 
which means that an individual must cease 
compiling mental dossiers against persons 
who may have inflicted pain on them. This is 
not an easy task, to remind one that closure of 
a particular bad experience is indispensable 
in order to turn a relationship around. This is 
especially crucial in organisations engaging with 
several stakeholders. Managing stakeholder-
relations does not entail kowtowing to the major 
player, but it is necessary to `find’ each other 
on the basis of the essential need to maintain 
parity and equality between stakeholders, 
and to develop grounds for respect among 
stakeholders, which includes mutual willingness 
to identify and acknowledge any shortcomings.

Relational management is about managing the 
assembly of people and not about assembling 
an agenda, and is designed not to view people 
in instrumental terms. The lessons learnt from 
a careful review of this easy-to-read book is 
worth the effort and highly recommended, 
since it is relevant to all spheres of life, and 
spans many periods of a person’s life.
Mahomed Kamdar

BOOK REVIEW

THE RELATIONAL MANAGER: 
TRANSFORM YOUR WORKPLACE 
AND YOUR LIFE
By Michael Schluter and David John Lee
Published by Lion Hudson 2009
ISBN: 978 0 7459 53687
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MEMBER PROFILE

PRAKASH NAIDOO 
Principal of the University of the Free State’s Qwa Qwa Campus

Why and how did you get into 
the accounting industry?
I studied at University of Durban Westville (UDW) 
with the intention of becoming a Chartered 
Accountant. I completed my BComm degree 
in three years and could not get articles due 
to quota restrictions at the time. Like many 
of my colleagues I became a school teacher 
and then lecturer, while being engaged as an 
accounting consultant at the same time. Being 
a member of the South Africa Institute of 
Professional Accountants, as it is called today, 
enabled me to do professional accounting 
and related work with a number of SMMEs, 
Body Corporates and Municipalities.

What is the best part of your job?
Turning organisations into success stories. For 
example, when I was Deputy Vice Chancellor 
(DVC): Finance, Vaal University of Technology 
(VUT), I took the University from a bankrupt 
position with a qualified audit report to one 
of the most financially sustainable universities 
in the country. I enjoyed developing the team 
that made this possible. I am humbled to see 
the joy on the faces of graduates and their 
parents when they complete their degrees 
– I am proud to be part of their succcess. In 
my new position as Campus Principal of the 
University Free State’s Qwa Qwa Campus I am 
positive that I will enjoy a similar experience.

What is the most challenging 
aspects of your job?
Managing finances is always challenging. In 
the current environment it is hard to please 
everybody in allocating budgets. Student 
fee increases and salary increases can be 
challenging too. In addition, managing fraud 
and corruption in universities when there is 
political inteference is always a challenge. I 
am also a Certified Fraud Examiner and I wish 
that some government departments were 
as serious as SAIPA and other professional 
bodies in eradicating the current scurge 
of fraud and corruption in our country.

Are there any career highlights 
worth mentioning?
When I was DVC: Finance at VUT I lead the 
institution to a joint first position with North 
West University (NWU) in the PWC Corporate 
Excellence Awards in 2010 (a competition open 
to all 23 Universities in SA). This was on the back 
of second positions in 2008 and 2009. This, is in 
addition to making VUT sustainable as indicated 

above. On a personal side I achieved a PhD 
(Vista), MComm (PUCHE), B Comm-Hons in 
Accounting (UNISA), B Comm-Hons in Economics 
(UNISA), Bcomm (UDW), UHDE (UDW). Of 
course, I am a very proud SAIPA member. 

Thoughts/predictions on the 
accounting industry as a whole?
It is obvious that, in light of greater governance 
and proper accountability, the whole world 
needs more accountants. I know in South Africa 
there is a perception that it must be chartered 
accountants, and sometimes there is a lack 
of recognition of the many other accounting-
related professional bodies.This  includes 
SAIPA, which adds real value to the profession. 
In order to grow the industry, much more 
awareness needs to be done at school level.

What do you do for fun?
I played amateur league soccer until the the age 
of 40 years. My move from KZN prompted me 
into going to the gym five days a week. With 
my move closer to the Maluti mountains since 
April 2013 and no Virgin Active nearby, who 
knows? Maybe mountain climbing or cycling will 
be possible. I enjoy watching sport, especially 
soccer and cricket. The best fun I have is by 
spending time with my three daughters, Talira, 
Tamiraa and Akira, and my spouse Bharathi!

It is obvious that, in light 
of  greater  governance 
and proper accountability, 
the whole world needs 
more accountants. I know 
in South Africa there is a 
perception that it must be 
chartered accountants, and 
sometimes there is a lack 
of recognition of the many 
other accounting-related 
professional bodies.This  
includes SAIPA, which adds 
real value to the profession.
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The Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment 
Act 53 of 2003 states that EMEs in general 
businesses with an annual turnover under 
R5-million do not require measurement against 
the onerous BEE scorecard. The Act requires 
a certificate to verify EME status issued by 
an accounting officer, auditor or verification 
agency. This has resulted in a lucrative business 
opportunity for accountants in terms of the 
issuing of these annual EME certificates.

Those issuing certificates may expose themselves 
to risks due to insufficient knowledge of B-BBEE 
requirements, non-compliant certificates, 
insufficient management of documentary 
evidence and a lack of tracking expiry dates. 
Certificates issued by some providers are often 
rejected by public procurement officials due 
to non-compliance with Treasury guidelines.

A simple solution
The BQ Systems tool provides a simple solution 
to the often complicated process of issuing EME 
certificates. It enables accounting officers to 
issue Treasury-compliant EME certificates to their 
clients, based on correct legislative procedures. 
The system has been developed by AQRate – a 
leading BEE verification agency in South Africa. 

Research shows that EME certificates can vary 
in cost from R450 to R1200. The BQ System 
tool offers accounting officers a cost-effective 
solution, and enables them to offer their 
clients the value-added service of an EME 
certificate with all new client registrations.

User-friendly
The BQ Systems EME verification tool is an 
easy to use, intuitive three-step process. One 
of the benefits of the system is that it assists 
in creating the necessary affidavits that need 
to be kept on record for black ownership 
purposes. The system also allows the EME 
certificate to be branded with your corporate 
identity or company logo. This feature can be 
used through a step-by-step guided process.

The system is simple to use, and very user-
friendly. It also serves as a safe and secure 
online repository that can be used to 
collect, manage and store all documentary 

evidence in one place. Users are able to 
create a database of client certificates, and 
the system also generates automated annual 
reminders for when certificates needed to 
be renewed. EME invoicing is available.

Support available
BQ Systems offer excellent customer service and 
systems support. A dedicated team of experts 
are available during business hours to assist with 
any support-related queries. In addition, easy-to-
access online video tutorials and user manual are 
provided. Should you need direct assistance in 
getting your site set up, BQ Systems can provide 
a setup team to assist you with the process. This 
service is available at an additional fee of R500 
- ex VAT, which is bookable upon registration.

The BQ Systems EME verification tool is available to SAIPA 
members at a special annual subscription fee of only R2000 
(excl VAT). There are no other additional ‘per certificate’ 
costs and you may issue as many certificates as you like. 

For more information visit their website 

at www.bqsystems.co.za

THE BQ SYSTEMS EME 
VERIFICATION TOOL

TECHNICAL REVIEW

b y  A Q R A t e
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W
hen the word grey 
is bandied about 
one either thinks of 
‘Fifty Shades’ or the 
general description 
of accountants. Am 
I right? It’s just one 

of those things that those tasked with adding 
and subtracting things are labelled with.

Perceptions deceptive 
For instance, look at that guy sitting in the 
restaurant window. Not that one with the 
Hawaiian shorts and headphones, the other 
one with a balding head, horn-rimmed glasses, 
white shirt, muted paisley tie, and colourless, 
dull and uninspiring suit. He’s happily counting 
the clockwise rotations of his spoon in a cup of 
black coffee and reading a copy of that fine book 
Qualitative Characteristics of Economic Entity 
Assumptionand the Impact on Unamortized Bond 
Discounts – a real page-turner. Later he’ll have 
a simple cheese and tomato on brown, keep the 
slip so he can claim, unlike Hawaiian guy who’ll 
no doubt tuck his chops into a lime-marinated 
flank steak with pickled carrots and radishes, 
ginger aioli, and Sriracha sauce on crusty Italian 
bread. But, as they say, when you think all is 
as it seems, inevitably that is not the case. 

About face
I recently attended the annual South African 
Accountants Profit and Loss Charity Dinner and, 
truth be told, I was expecting an evening of light 
fog and drizzle where the highlight would be 
saying farewell to my host and driving home. Boy, 
was I wrong. The evening headed south from 

the get-go when I was force-fed tequila shots by 
young women who were aggressively pursuing 
centerfold careers. On entering the room, I was 
given a lampshade to put on my head and given 
the choice of two pre-dinner activities – dwarf-
throwing, or pinning the tail on the donkey.In 
this case a live donkey whose pitiful braying and 
hee-hawing was competing with the sounds of 
Swedish Death Metal music. We were then told 
to strip down before dinner as we had to walk 
through a foam pit to dine which, the menu 
told me, would be free-for-all pig roast in the 
centreof the room. The evening’s entertainment 
would be a transvestite Lady Gaga impersonator 
wearing a dress of live maroon butterflies. 

During the course of the wildest corporate party 
I’d ever attended, my host – a senior partner 
at one of the biggest auditing firms in the 
country, who’d had a blood-drop tattooed on 
his left butt-cheek – apologised for the tame 
evening and told me the previous year they’d 
organised for shaven chattering squirrels to 
skydive into the venue and hand out nuts. 

…and perceptions return
Four days later, having been medically assisted 
out of the worst hangover in living memory, 
and wondering how I had strange triangle-
shaped bruises at the end of all 10 toes, I 
called my host to thank him and to tell him my 
perception of accountants had changed from 
party pooper to party animal. But I was told 
he was chairing a sub-committee meeting, 
discussing the principles and guidelines 
for permanently restricted net assets when 
calculating labour efficiency variance.

OFF BALANCE SHEET

LIVE MAROON BUTTERFLIES RIGHT 
AFTER THE FOAM PIT
Jeremy Maggs


